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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

HIGHLIGHTS

. Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB1,587.4 million, a decrease of 13.0% as compared to last
year.

. Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB288.5 million, a decrease of approximately 4.8% as

compared to last year.

o Profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB144.6 million, an increase of 11.3% as compared
to last year.
o Profit and total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2022 attributable to owners of the Company was

approximately RMB122.2 million, an increase of 11.9% as compared to last year.

3 Earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company was RMB24.44cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2022.

o The Board recommended to declare the final dividend of RMBO0.074 per ordinary share, totalling RMB37.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of China PengFei Group Limited
("Pengfei Group” or the “Company”), | hereby present to you the
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

In 2022, in response to the various challenges, such as negative
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and economic downturn
domestically, Pengfei Group united and led all staffs to combat with
the difficulties with focus on action, forging ahead with enterprise
and fortitude, in order to comprehensively facilitate various tasks
of steady growth, anti-epidemic, ensuring safety and promoting
development. Major economic indicators kept a development trend
of stable growth with good momentum. As of 31 December 2021,
the Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB1,587.4 million
and a profit and comprehensive income attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately RMB122.2 million, representing
a decrease of 13.0% and an increase of 11.9% year-on-year as
compared with the corresponding period of last year. Among which,
sales of new energy products amounted to RMB1 billion.

In 2022, the Group actively put in the new development concept
into practice, focusing on the developing target of “carbon peak
and carbon neutrality” and accelerating project construction and the
green transformation of the enterprise. National project of “pollution
control and energy conservation and carbon reduction” (“)5%
JRIEAENEEIRAR "), Jiangsu special project of strategic emerging
industries (T & & BUBS 4 ¥TELE ¥ FTH) and “green providers of
Jiangsu Province” (“T# A EMAER ") has successfully passed
the final acceptance. The “research and development project for
equipment employing pyrolysis technology for low-rank and green
coal clean usage” was approved by the dual carbon projects of
Jiangsu Province (T# & €HxIEE) to initiate. The “research and
development project for process technology of extraction of lithium
from lithium minerals for low carbon and energy conservation” (" 2
iR s K i A gk T E H T # 2% ") was approved by Nantong
Projects of “selecting the best candidates via open competition
mechanism” to initiate. We strived to explore potentiality in green
electricity. In 2022, Pengfei Group has invested RMB16 million to
construct a 4MW distributed photovoltaic power panels on the
rooftop of new plants, achieving self-generating for self-use and
feeding excess into the grid, which significantly reduced the cost
for purchased electricity, facilitating clean production and reducing
energy consumption and carbon emissions. The national standard
of Complete Sets of Equipment Technical Requirements for Lime
Calcining* K ARREKEFEHERIME L)), which the Group played
a leading role in its drafting, was issued and implemented during

the year.
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Due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the relevant
travel restrictions had brought in many difficulties in dispatching
personnel and goods to overseas project sites, and the progress of
our production line projects was inevitably be affected, resulting
in the delay of the construction of a production line with capacity
of 3,300 tonnes per day of clinker cement in Uzbekistan. In 2023,
the Company will concentrate its advantageous resources and
coordinate the efforts of all parties to promote the construction
progress of the Uzbekistan project.

2023 is the reviewing and embracing year of the 14th Five-Year
Plan and a year of development to green and low-carbon
transformation of the Group. As openness brings progress and
cooperation achieves win-win results, | firmly believe that after
the pandemic, a new round of development opportunities will be
unleashed. The Company will adhere to the principle of making
progress while maintaining stability, and devote itself to “enhancing
quality management and efficiency” ("EREIEZL") and achieve
“peak carbon dioxide emission and reduction” (" 3ZIEFEH ). With
the commencement of production of new plant, we promoted
the adjustment to industrial layout and strived to increase the
development momentum for Pengfei. We will build “Belt and
Road” high-quality projects for Pengfei, and strive to achieve goals
such as technology-driven industry, internationalized operation,
green manufacturing and refined management. In addition, we will
strengthen management improvement by benchmarking against
world-class standards. We will accumulate experience for marching
forward, enhance the cultivation of various talents and accelerate
the new journey of building a international first-class enterprise.

Finally, on behalf of the board of directors, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to the management team and our employees for
their hard work and inspirational contributions to the development
of the Group. | would also like to thank our shareholders, investors,
customers and partners who have always been supporting the
development of the Group! With your joint efforts, we will definitely

be met with new achievements and glories in our future expedition.

China PengFei Group Limited
WANG lJiaan
Chairman

Jiangsu, the PRC
30 March, 2023



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

As a leading manufacturer of rotary kilns, grinding equipment and their related equipment in the PRC and the global market, business
activities of the Group are divided into three business lines, namely (i) manufacturing of equipment, in which we engage in the design,
manufacturing and sales of equipment including related parts and components for various industries including building materials, metallurgy,
chemical and environmental protection industries; (i) installation services, in which we mainly provide installation services to our customers
under our manufacturing of equipment business as this is part and parcel of our manufacturing of equipment business; and (iii) construction
of production line, in which we act as an EPC service provider providing bespoke one-stop solutions in respect of design, procurement,

construction and/or trial operations of production lines.

Expansion of customer base

The Group continued to expand its customer base by reinforcing the Group’s market presence in the building materials industry. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, revenue generated from customers in the building material industries amounted to approximately RMB573.1
million (2021: RMB905.3 million).

Apart from serving our customers in the building materials industry, the Group has also expanded its products and services to serve
our customers in other industries, mainly metallurgy, chemical and environmental protection industries as a result of our research and
development efforts. Revenue generated from our customers of equipment manufacturing in non-building materials industries accounted
for approximately 61.4% and 70.2%, respectively, of our total revenue in the manufacturing of equipment business for the year 2021 and
2022. With the Group's continuous effort to tap into the metallurgy, chemical and environmental protection industries with a primary focus
on the treatment of various municipal solid waste, during the year of 2022, over 80% of our rotary kilns were used in emerging industries

such as laterite nickel ore, new energy lithium batteries, environmental protection sludge, solid and hazardous waste disposal.

The Group also continued its effort to expand its business into potential markets along the “Belt and Road” countries including Uzbekistan,
Kazakhstan, South Korea and Ivory Coast (Cote d'Ilvoire). Revenue generated from our customers in the “Belt and Road” countries accounted
for approximately 19.9% and 10.9%, respectively, of our total revenue for the years 2021 and 2022. During the year, the Group has
participated in the construction of four production line projects, three of which were located in “Belt and Road” countries and one of which

was on-going as at 31 December 2022.

Research and Development

To maintain the Group’s market position in the rotary kiln and grinding equipment industries and expand the Group's product portfolio and
improve the functionality and efficiency of its products, the Group has invested in its research and development capabilities focusing on the
energy saving and environmentally-friendliness technologies and continued to cooperate with research institutions in the PRC. Currently, the
Group is conducting research and development with Tsinghua University on “Key Technology for Efficient Pyrolysis and Clean Utilisation of
Low-rank Coal” (& H = iz & 2 F FRAE 117)). During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has continued to participate
in the discussion on the setting of 6 national and industry standards, including the drafting of a national standard named “Complete Sets
of Equipment Technical Requirements for Lime Calcining” (AR IBEKNERERMER). As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 109
authorised patents, comprising 54 are invention patents and 55 utility model patents. There are also 53 patent applications pending approval

which primarily relate to manufacture of products in our rotary kiln and grinding equipment system.

CHINA PENGFEI GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outlook

We believe the PRC government will continue adopting policies to stimulate the economy as well as encouraging investment in overseas
infrastructure along the “Belt and Road” countries. Looking ahead, in light of the growing demand of rotary kilns, grinding equipment and
their related equipment in the overseas market, the Group will continue to make good use of the “Belt and Road” initiatives and actively
explore opportunities in relation to construction of production lines located in “Belt and Road” countries and emerging markets where there
is a significant demand for building materials as well as production equipment relating to building materials.

Going forward, in view of more awareness of environmental protection and the PRC government’s strong desire to eliminate backward
production capacity and excessive capacities in the building materials industry and reducing pollution from cement industry, we will continue
to expand the Group’s products and services to customers in other industries such as metallurgy, chemical and environmental protection
industries.

We believe that with the recent change to China’s zero-COVID policy and lifting of COVID-19 related prevention and control measures, we
can achieve stable and sustainable performance despite the challenging environment and create long term value for shareholders. While the
relaxation of border control policies marks a crucial step forward in defeating COVID-19 Pandemic and the national economy is expected to
improve in 2023, the Directors will continue to closely monitor the settlement payment and financial position of our customers in 2023 to
ensure prompt action against any recoverability issue for our trade receivables.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue
Year ended 31 December Year-over-
2022 2021 Year Change
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % %
Manufacturing of equipment 1,424,583 89.7 1,484,664 81.3 -4.0
Installation service 19,081 1.2 19,919 1.1 -4.2
Construction of production line 143,750 9.1 320,541 17.6 -55.2
Total 1,587,414 100.0 1,825,124 100.0 -13.0

Our revenue decreased by approximately RMB237.7 million or 13.0% to approximately RMB1,587.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 from approximately RMB1,825.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 as a result of the decrease in revenue from our
construction of production line business and our manufacturing of equipment business.

Manufacturing of equipment. Revenue derived from manufacturing of equipment business decreased by RMB60.1 million or 4.0% to
RMB1,424.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from RMB1,484.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease in
revenue derived from manufacturing of equipment business was primarily due to the decreased domestic sales of grinding equipment system
made during the year.

CHINA PENGFEI GROUP LIMITED
2022 Annual Report



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Installation service. Revenue derived from our installation services business decreased by RMBO0.8 million or 4.2% to approximately RMB19.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from approximately RMB19.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. This decrease was
mainly due to the decreased demand of installation services from customers under our manufacturing of equipment business for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Construction of production line. Revenue from our construction of production line business decreased significantly by RMB176.8 million or
55.2% to approximately RMB143.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from approximately RMB320.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2021. This decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease of revenue from our construction of production line projects

located in Uzbekistan.

Cost of sales and services

Our cost of sales and services decreased by approximately RMB223.2 million or 14.7% to approximately RMB1,298.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 from approximately RMB1,522.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly due to decrease of sales
during the same period. Cost of raw materials, being the largest component of our cost of sales and services decreased by approximately
RMB26.2 million.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's gross profit decreased by RMB14.5 million or 4.8% to approximately RMB288.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 from approximately RMB303.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group's gross profit margin
increased to 18.2% for the year ended 31 December 2022 from 16.6% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Other income

Our other income decreased by RMB0.8 million or 7.4% to approximately RMB9.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from
approximately RMB10.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly due to the lower bank interest income for the year ended 31

December 2022 as compared with last year.

Other gains and losses

We record other gains of approximately RMB17.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2022, as compared with other losses of
approximately RMB4.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. This was mainly due to the turn of foreign exchange loss of
approximately RMB6.7 million during the year ended 31 December 2021 to a gain of approximately RMB11.0 million during the year ended
31 December 2022.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our distribution and selling expenses decreased by RMB4.3 million or 4.9% to approximately RMB83.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 from approximately RMB87.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly due to the lower transportation costs
incurred by the Group during the same period as transportation services requested by our customers mainly involves short-distance transport

and the lower transportation expenses incurred for our overseas production line projects.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by approximately RMB4.9 million or 9.2% to approximately RMB47.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 from approximately RMB52.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly attributable to the lower professional

services fee incurred during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CHINA PENGFEI GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Research expenditure

Our research expenditure decreased by RMB2.9 million or 9.6% to approximately RMB27.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
from approximately RMB30.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly due to the lower technical consultancy fee incurred

during the year ended 31 December 2022 as compared with last year.

Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net of reversal

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables and contract assets increased by approximately RMB3.9 million or 49.3% to approximately
RMB11.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from approximately RMB7.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly
due to increased impairment loss on trade receivables provided for the year ended 31 December 2022. The increase in impairment loss on
trade receivables provided for the year ended 31 December 2022 was mainly due to the increase of credit-impaired trade receivables during

the year ended 31 December 2022 as compared last year.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased by RMB3.0 million or 15.1% to approximately RMB22.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
from approximately RMB19.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. Our effective tax rate was 15.1% and 15.6% for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, respectively.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, our profit and total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company increased by approximately
RMB13.0 million or 11.9% to approximately RMB122.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from approximately RMB109.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

WORKING CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group maintained sufficient working capital as at 31 December 2022 and continued to adopt a prudent treasury policy in managing its
cash balances and maintain a strong and healthy liquidity to ensure that the Group is well placed to take advantage of growth opportunities

of its business.

Net current assets of the Group amounted to approximately RMB138.8 million (31 December 2021: RMB95.1 million) with a current ratio
calculated by dividing our current assets over our current liabilities of 106.5% (31 December 2021: 104.7%) as at 31 December 2022.

Inventories increased by approximately RMB175.0 million or 21.1% to approximately RMB1,002.8 million as at 31 December 2022 from
approximately RMB827.9 million as at 31 December 2021. Inventory turnover days was 257 days for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing an increase of 76 days as compared to 181 days for the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase in inventory turnover days
was mainly due to increase of work-in-progress inventories during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CHINA PENGFEI GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade, bills and other receivables decreased by approximately RMB72.9 million or 10.6% to approximately RMB615.9 million as at 31
December 2022 from approximately RMB688.8 million as at 31 December 2021, among which trade receivables decreased by approximately
RMB72.3 million or 17.6% to approximately RMB339.0 million as compared with approximately RMB411.3 million as at 31 December 2021.
In May 2019, the Group, due to the expected delay in settlement from one of our production line customers resulting from the prolonged
approval procedures of its financing bank, entered into a supplemental agreement with such customer pursuant to which our Group
agreed that such customer to defer the outstanding payment upon completion of test run of such production line project up to a maximum
amount of RMB280 million (the “Deferred Payment”) bearing a fixed interest rate of 8.41% per annum secured and guaranteed by such
customer. As agreed in the supplemental agreement, the Deferred Payment up to a maximum amount of RMB280 million was agreed to
be settled in every three months by 12 installments starting from 30 September 2020, but subject to a specific date upon finalisation of
negotiation by both parties. As at 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report, the Group is still in negotiation and had not yet
agreed on a commencement date of the repayment. As at 31 December 2022, outstanding balance of approximately RMB136.5 million (net
of impairment loss allowance of approximately RMB12.0 million) was included in the Group's trade receivables. Subsequent to 31 December
2022, repayment of approximately USD500,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB3.5 million) was made by such customer. Our trade
receivables turnover days was 76 days (2021: 73 days) for the year ended 31 December 2022 representing an increase of 3 days. The trade

receivable turnover days remained stable during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

Prepayments to suppliers increased by approximately RMB47.1 million or 51.0% to approximately RMB139.5 million as at 31 December 2022
from approximately RMB92.4 million as at 31 December 2021 primarily due to increased prepayments made to the suppliers for the purchase
of raw materials.

Contract liabilities increased by approximately RMB36.5 million or 3.0% to approximately RMB1,257.8 million as at 31 December 2022 from
approximately RMB1,221.3 million as at 31 December 2021. The increase in contract liabilities was mainly due to the advance payments
received from our customers during the year for the new and on-going contracts obtained.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group funds its business operations both through cash flows generated from its business operations and through external financing,
primarily including banking facilities. The Group's primary uses of cash are for the payment for: (a) raw materials; (b) sub-contracting fees; (c)

staff costs; and (d) overhead.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB345.7 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB393.7 million). A portion of the Group’s bank deposits totaling approximately RMB114.1 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB49.0 million) were restricted for the raise of bank borrowings, issue of bills payables and letter of credit by the Group. The Group's cash
and cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits were mostly denominated in Renminbi, Swiss Franc, United States dollars, Hong Kong
dollars and Euro.

As at 31 December 2022, we had banking facilities of approximately RMB563.5 million, of which approximately RMB158.4 million
were utilised. The utilised banking facilities as at 31 December 2022 represented bank guarantee of approximately RMB94.4 million and
bank acceptance bill amounted to RMB64.0 million. As at 31 December 2022, our Group had unutilised banking facilities amounted to
approximately RMB405.1 million. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank borrowings of approximately RMB105.4 million (31
December 2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing our total liabilities over our equity attributable to
owners of the Company multiplied by 100%, was 273.5% (31 December 2021: 289.4%). The decrease in our gearing ratio was mainly due
to the increased balance of our equity as at 31 December 2022.

CHINA PENGFEI GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded net cash from operating activities of approximately RMB44.0 million (2021:
RMB204.9 million). Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately RMB167.8 million
(2021: RMB198.0 million). Net cash from financing activities for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately RMB72.3
million (2021: net cash used in financing activities RMB40.0 million).

The Board and the management of the Company had been closely monitoring the Group’s liquidity position, performing ongoing credit

evaluations, and monitoring the financial conditions of its customers, in order to ensure the Group’s healthy cash position.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Financial Risks

The Group is exposed to market risks from changes in market rates and prices, such as exchange rates, interest rates, credit and liquidity.

Currency risk

The Group's exposure to currency risk relates primarily to the Group’s sales to customers outside mainland China which is usually
denominated in USD. The Group has not adopted any foreign exchange hedging policy, engage in any currency hedging or have any
positions in any derivative financial instruments to hedge our currency risk as management of the Group considers that the foreign exchange

risk exposure of the Group is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's bank borrowings, lease liabilities, loans to
and amounts due to independent third parties and the floating-rate restricted bank balance and bank balances. The Group currently does
not have formal interest rate hedging policies. The management of the Group monitors its exposures on an on-going basis and will consider

hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of that a customer or counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade, bills and other receivables, contract assets, term deposits, restricted bank deposits and

bank balances.

Given that 48% of the total trade receivables was due from a construction of production line customer of Group as at 31 December 2022 (31

December 2021: 67%), the Group has concentration of credit risk.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual receivables at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are

made for irrecoverable amounts.

Liquidity risk

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not experience any liquidity shortage. We managed our liquidity risks by
maintaining adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities (31 December 2021: nil).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's capital expenditures amounted to approximately RMB110.8 million (31 December 2021: approximately

RMB120.8 million) which has mainly related to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and purchase of intangible assets.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's restricted bank deposits and bills receivables with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB143.1 million (31 December 2021: RMB49.0 million) were pledged to banks for obtaining line of credit, securing the Group’s banking

facilities or issuing bills payables.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s capital expenditures in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted but not
provided for amounted to approximately RMB1.8 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB17.2 million).

OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS

Save for the capital commitment and pledged assets disclosed above, the Group did not enter into any material off-balance sheet

transactions or arrangements during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 1,100 employees (31 December 2021: 1,036) including staff from administrative, finance,
sales, supply, technical, quality control, and production departments.

Remuneration packages of our employees usually comprise, among other things, salaries, contribution to pension schemes and allowances.
We regularly review and determine the remuneration and compensation package of our employees by reference to, among other things,
their performance, qualifications, respective responsibilities and market levels of salaries paid by comparable companies. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group's incurred staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration) of approximately RMB134.9 million (2021:

approximately RMB123.2 million).

The Group provide to our employees on a regular basis and when deemed necessary training covering various aspects of our business
operation, including work safety, sales and marketing, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, technical skills, management and

production quality.

The Group did not experience any major labour disputes, work stoppages or labour strikes that led to disruptions in our Group’s operations.
The Directors consider that the Group has maintained a good working relationship with its staff.
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2022 Annual Report

11



12

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE OFFER

Net proceeds from the share offer (the “Share Offer”) as described in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 October 2019 (the

"Prospectus”) and the listing of the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange on 15 November 2019 (the “Listing Date"),

after deduction of the underwriting fees and commissions and estimated expenses of the Company in connection with the Share Offer was

approximately HK$150.0 million. During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no change in the intended use of net proceeds of the

Company as previously disclosed in the Prospectus.

The table below sets forth the detailed breakdown, including the amount of utilised proceeds, the description of the proceeds, the purpose

of which they are used, for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Investing in a project for manufacturing
rotary kilns possessing the latest
roasting and pyrolysis technology
e Purchasing new machinery
e Constructing a new production plant for
manufacturing rotary kilns possessing the latest
roasting and pyrolysis technology
e Recruiting technicians and/or experts Product quality

testing Patent application and registration

Increasing the productivity and efficiency
in manufacturing our products for our
rotary kiln and grinding equipment system

e Purchasing multi-tasking machine tool
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Unutilised
amount

as at

Net 31 December

Utilised
amount
during the
year ended
31 December

Utilised
amount

as at

31 December

Unutilised
amount

as at

31 December

proceeds 2021 2022Mote ) 2022Mote ) 2022
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
713 - - 713 -

43.0 - - 43.0 -

3.7 - - 3.7 -

118.0 - - 118.0 -

10.5 - - 10.5 -

10.5 - - 10.5 -

Expected timeline
for unutilised
amount

Fully utilised in 2021

Fully utilised in 2021



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Utilised
Unutilised amount Utilised Unutilised
amount  during the amount amount
asat year ended as at asat Expected timeline

Net 31 December 31December 31 December 31 December for unutilised
proceeds 2021 2022Mote 7) 2022Mote7) 2022 amount
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

Research and development of the latest
roasting and pyrolysis technology
applicable to rotary kilns
¢ Joint-research with a process engineering institute 4.5 2.6 2.6 4.5 -
in the PRC for the research and development of
efficient rotary kiln pyrolysis for the treatment of co-
processing solid waste
e Joint-research with a renowned university in the PRC 3.1 29 29 3.1 -
for the purpose of using high efficient low-rank coal
cleaning pyrolysis technology to formulate a number
of core technologies
e Joint-research with a renowned university in the PRC 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 -
for the research and development of high-efficient
energy-saving lithium calcination rotary kiln system
e Participating in the national and the international 0.6 0.1 0.1 0.6 -
drafting committees for setting the technical

requirements for lime calcination rotary kiln

10.2 7.6 7.6 10.2 - Fully utilised in 2022
Marketing activities
e Participating in local and international exhibitions and 35 0.8 0.8 35 -
conferences
e Upgrading and optimizing our website to increase 1.7 - - 1.7 -
the number of readable languages
5.2 0.8 0.8 5.2 - Fully utilised in 2022
Working capital 6.1 - - 6.1 - Fully utilised in 2020
150.0 8.4 8.4 150.0 -
Note:
1. The net proceeds were utilised by our PRC subsidiaries in RMB. The translation of RMB into Hong Kong dollars has been made at the

rate of HK$1.00 to RMB0.8176 for the purpose of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has invested its available cash-in-hand in wealth management products issued by
banks in the PRC as part of the Group’s treasury measure for better short-term cash flows management purposes. As at 31 December 2022,
the financial assets at FVTPL held by the Group were RMB200.0 million (31 December 2021: RMB200.7 million), representing 6.7% of total
assets of the Group. Details of the financial assets at FVTPL held by the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out as follows:

Changes in Percentage of

fair value Carrying  total assets

for the amount of the Group

Principal  year ended as of as of

amount of 31 December 31 December 31 December

Financial assets at FVTPL Subscription date  Interest rate Maturity date  subscription 2022 2022 2022
(per annum) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)
Public RMB Structured Deposit 15 December 2022 1.20% or 3.26% 21 June 2023 100,000 - 100,000 3.3%

2022, Issue 48, 6 Months A*
HRAAREEBETR
2022 FF48HI6EAA ) toe?

BOC Linked Structured Deposit 30 December 2022 1.6% or 4.5630% 6 January 2024 49,990 - 49,990 1.7%
CSDVY202225493
(Institutional Customer)*
(PESRITHMAR A B 1L 1T 3R
CSDVY202225493
(EREEF)) toe?

BOC Linked Structured Deposit 30 December 2022 1.6% or 4.5530% 7 January 2024 50,010 - 50,010 1.7%
CSDVY202225494
(Institutional Customer)*
(hEISRTTEMAR B IR
CSDVY202225494
(BREF) toe?

* For identification purpose only
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Notes:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This wealth management product is principal-guaranteed with floating income and redeemable upon the maturity date. The Group
expects to receive the principal amount and return of this product on 21 June 2023, being the maturity date. If during the observation
period, the relevant linked indicator is maintained within the target range, the expected rate of return will be 1.20% per annum,
otherwise 3.26% per annum. For details of this wealth management product, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 December 2022.

This wealth management product is principal-guaranteed with guaranteed minimum return and redeemable upon the maturity date.
The Group expects to receive the principal amount and return of this product on 6 January 2024, being the maturity date. If the
relevant linked indicator is lower than a set baseline at the observation time, the expected minimum rate of return will be 1.6% per
annum, otherwise a maximum rate of return of 4.5630% per annum. For details of this wealth management product, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2022.

This wealth management product is principal-guaranteed with guaranteed minimum return and redeemable upon the maturity date.
The Group expects to receive the principal amount and return of this product on 7 January 2024, being the maturity date. If the
relevant linked indicator is higher than a set baseline at the observation time, the expected minimum rate of return will be 1.6% per
annum, otherwise a maximum rate of return of 4.5530% per annum. For details of this wealth management product, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant investment held or performed any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,

associated companies and joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group does not have other plans for material investments and capital assets during the year ended
31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present this report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 November 2019 (“Listing”).
The Company and its subsidiaries now comprising the Group underwent the reorganisation which was completed on 8 September 2018
as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 October 2019 (“Prospectus”). During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
subsidiaries now comprising the Group were involved in rotary kilns, grinding equipment and their related equipment manufacturing and

installation, and construction of production line business.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
A review and analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” sections in this annual report. For future business development, the Group will continue to focus on
its existing businesses and expand its customer base by reinforcing the Group’s market presence in the building material industry and further
diversifying into metallurgy, chemical and environmental protection industries. Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Report —
Subsequent Events” in this annual report, there were no significant events of the Group after the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income of this annual report. A financial summary of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020,
2021 and 2022 have been set out on page 130 in this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has recommended the distribution of a final dividend (the “Final Dividend"”) of
RMBO0.074 per ordinary share to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Friday, 30 June 2023, totalling RMB37.0 million, subject to approval by the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM")
of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 20 June 2023. The Final Dividend will be declared in RMB and paid in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD")
by applying the middle rate of HKD to RMB announced by the Bank of China on 30 March 2023, which was HKD1.00 to RMB0.8776, as the
applicable exchange rate for calculation of the Final Dividend. Subject to Shareholders’ approval at the AGM, the Final Dividend payable for
each ordinary share shall be HKD0.084 and the aggregate amount of which will be paid out of the Company’s share premium account. Total
dividend payout ratio is 30.3% of the profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company. The proposed Final Dividend is expected
to be distributed to Shareholders on or around Thursday, 20 July 2023.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group faces, among others, the following principal risks and uncertainties:

(i) Reliance on the macroeconomic conditions in the PRC

The Group generates a substantial portion of revenue from sales in China. Our business and future growth prospects depend on
general economic conditions and levels of construction and infrastructure development in the PRC and overseas countries where
our customers are based. For example, in the PRC, the increasing urbanization rate, the rapid development of construction industry
and widening application of rotary kiln and grinding equipment in broader fields such as metallurgy, chemical and environmental
protection industries have enormously prompted the demand for building materials production and processing equipment, especially
rotary kilns, grinding equipment and their related equipment over the past few years. It cannot be assured that China’s economy will

continue to grow or that its growth will be steady or occur in the geographical regions or economic sectors that related to the Group.
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(i)

(iii)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Reliance on customers from the building materials industry

Any changes to downstream industries in overseas and China markets that our Group's products in the rotary kiln and grinding
equipment systems cater to, in particular, the building materials industry which accounted for approximately 36.1% (2021: 49.6%) of
our total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022, will have a direct impact on our sales volume and eventually our results of
operations. The development of infrastructure and building construction in China and overseas markets will continuously generate a
growing consumption demand for a variety of building materials, especially cement. Our sales volume will be directly impacted by the

urbanization rate and the development of construction industry.

Uncertainty as to expanding the Group’s business into the “Belt and Road” countries as well as risks
associated with international sales

One of our business strategies is to extend our international footprint to more “Belt and Road” countries in Central and East
Europe and Central Asia regions. Expansion into “Belt and Road” countries may give rise to various associated risks, including legal
and political risks. Foreign companies venturing into “Belt and Road” countries may not have access to adequate legal protection,
especially where legal regimes are underdeveloped and have low credibility, and where social and judicial corruption is rife. In addition,
certain “Belt and Road” countries suffer from political instability, civil unrest or even armed conflict, which will require foreign
companies entering into such “Belt and Road” countries to maintain a robust business continuity plan and good security intelligence,
all of which will necessitate a certain amount of expenditure. As a result of such high risk jurisdictions and given the fact that our
employees are required to provide technical support and/or training in such places from time to time, we may be required to put in
place certain security measures to ensure the safety of our employees and/or other assets, if any. There is no guarantee that such
security measures will be entirely foolproof and the purchase and maintenance of such additional security measures may also result in
substantial expenses for our Group, depending on the seriousness of the situation in the relevant jurisdiction, which may in turn affect
our financial condition and outweigh the benefits of undertaking projects in such “Belt and Road” countries. Expansion may therefore
place undue pressure on our financial, personnel and management resources that would be otherwise available for our current

business operations.

In addition, a substantial portion of our total revenue is generated from the sale of our products and/or provisions of our services to
customers outside the PRC. During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue generated from our customers outside mainland
China amount to approximately RMB258.6 million (2021: RMB404.5 million), representing approximately 16.3% (2021: 22.2%) of
our total revenue. Our plan to expand our customer base by venturing into newly emerged markets including the “Belt and Road”
countries, may be subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties associated with such expansion, including: (a) political and economic
instabilities; (b) foreign exchange rate exposure and the risk of foreign exchange control; (c) exposure to increased litigation risks in
overseas markets; (d) unfamiliarity with local laws, regulatory requirements, operating and market conditions; (e) cultural and language
difficulties; (f) competition from local companies; (g) foreign taxes; and (h) potential disputes and difficulty in managing relationships

with foreign customers.

Given the above, we cannot assure you that our future expansion plans and international sales into these markets will be smooth or
successful. If our future expansion plans into such “Belt and Road” countries encounter difficulties or do not reap the anticipated

benefits, the additional costs incurred may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operation.
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(iv) Fluctuation in costs of raw materials

Our principal raw materials are steel materials including steel plates, castings and forgings, and our principal parts and components
include motors, reducers and bearings. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the cost of raw materials was a major component
of our cost of sales and services, representing approximately 79.6% (2021: 69.7%) of our total cost of sales and services. Any material
fluctuation in the cost of raw materials may affect the results of our operations. Costs of raw materials may fluctuate subject to factors
beyond our control including availability and supply of the raw materials, inflation of labour costs, economic and market conditions
and changes in suppliers’ business plans and marketing strategies. We cannot assure the Shareholders and potential investors that our
costs of raw materials will not fluctuate in the future. If such costs increase, it will directly affect our revenue and profit margin which

will in turn materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

For details of the other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus,
and for details of the financial risks and the related risk management policies and practices used by the Group, please refer to note 35
headed “Financial risk management objectives and policies” to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is not aware of any material events undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31 December 2022

and up to the date of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 14 to

the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2022 in the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the amended and restated articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing

Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the shares. If the Shareholders
are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any rights in relation to the

shares, they are advised to consult their professional advisers.
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DONATION

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to RMB251,600 (2021:
RMB500,000).

RESERVES

Details of the amounts and movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB79.5 million
(2021: RMB111.3 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue derived from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 6.4% and 28.5% (2021: approximately 10.5% and 40.1%) of the Group's total revenue for the year, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, purchases from the Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
14.8% and 42.4% (2021: approximately 14.0% and 39.7%) of the Group's total purchases for the year, respectively.

So far is known to the Directors, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 that any of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders who owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interests in any of the above five largest customers
and suppliers of the Group for the year.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship with its employees, suppliers, customers and other stakeholders
to meet its immediate and long-term goals. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship with
each of its key stakeholders. During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no material and significant dispute between the Group
and its employees, suppliers, customers and/or other stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 37 to 55 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the applicable environmental laws as well as protecting the environment by
minimising the negative impact of the Group’s existing business activities on the environment and complying with the applicable

environmental laws and regulations.

Our business is subject to provisions under PRC environmental laws and regulations on noise, waste water, air emission and other industrial
waste. The major governing environmental laws and regulations consist of the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC* ((#ZE AR £ FNE
IRIFIREL)), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution* ( FFZE A R HEMBIKSSZE567%)), the Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution* 12 A RZEMBIAR RS /A7%)), the Law of PRC on the Prevention and Control of Solid
Waste Pollution* (H2E A R HANE[E 88 EEY))5 2 IRFHIE)E)), and the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution*
(FEARAMBRITRE SRR

In order to avoid any potential environmental issue, we have also implemented certain measures, including:

(i) emitting pollutants generated in the course of production, such as sulfur dioxide, smoke and industrial solid waste, according to

standards; and
(i) conducting environmental impact assessment and completing environmental approval procedures as required before production.

The Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report will be prepared separately from this annual report and will be published at

the same time as the publication of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance.
Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report, to the best of the
Company'’s knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, the Group is not aware of any non-compliance in any
material respect with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) are provided in the section

headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

* For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jiaan (ER %)
Mr. Zhou Yinbiao (JERIZ)
Mr. Dai Xianru (3% 40)
Mr. Ben Daolin (E3E#K)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Lanrong (5R/z &)
Mr. Ding Zaiguo (T B )
Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas (Z:f#3%)

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. For details about the
retirement and rotation of Directors, please refer to the paragraph headed “Corporate Governance Report — The Board” on page 38 of this

annual report.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of all the Directors and senior management of the Company are set out on pages 29 to 36 of this report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report, there has been no

change in information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, a written confirmation of his/her independence pursuant

to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all the independent non-executive Directors as independent.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group does not have any employee who is required to participate in the Mandatory Provident Fund in Hong Kong. The employees of the
PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government. The employees of the PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only

obligation of the Group with respect to this retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

Details of the retirement benefits contributions of the Company are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual

report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date and renewable automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from 15 November 2022, the day next after
the expiry of the then current term, which may be terminated in accordance with the provisions of the service agreement or by not less than

three months’ notice in writing served by either our Directors or the Company on the other.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors has renewed his/her letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of one year
on 15 November 2022, which may be terminated at any time by either party at anytime by giving notice to the other and subject to rotation,

removal, vacation or termination of such office in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the individual service agreement, each of our executive Directors is entitled to a fixed amount of emolument and discretionary
management bonus to be determined by our Board. For our independent non-executive Directors, pursuant to the then individual
appointment letters, each of them is entitled to a fixed director’s fee. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to

the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

All of the executive Directors’ service agreements and independent non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment entered between the

Company and the respective Director has been reviewed and ratified by the Nomination Committee.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a Director’s service agreement with
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors and directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates had
interests in businesses, which compete or are likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its

subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Wang Jiaan and Ambon Holding Limited (together, the “Controlling Shareholders”), have confirmed to the Company of their
compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”) entered into between the Controlling Shareholders and the Company dated 28 October 2019 during the year ended
31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report. Details of the Deed of Non-Competition are set out in the section headed

“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition have been complied with by the Controlling Shareholders during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements contained herein this annual report. None of the related party transactions constitute a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has not
entered into any connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the requirements of Rule
14A.71 of the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE FOR PROVISION
OF SERVICES

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to and in which
a Controlling Shareholder or its subsidiaries had a material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, and no contracts of significance for the
provision of services to the Group by a Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company and associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") which are (a) recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO (including interests and short positions in which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard dealings by directors of listed issuer as referred to Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"”), were as

follows:
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Long Positions in the Shares

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares interest
Mr. Wang Jiaan (EX %) Interest in controlled corporation Mete ) 215,249,438 43.05%

Note:

(1) Ambon Holding Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Jiaan (£ %) who is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Ambon
Holding Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company nor their associates had registered
an interest or short position in any Shares or underlying Shares and/or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions in which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or that was required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which are required to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares and Debentures

At any time during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report was the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any arrangement which would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than Directors
or chief executive of the Company whose interests are disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors” and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations” above) had interest or short

position in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:
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Long positions in the Shares

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Substantial Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares interest
Ambon Holding Limited Beneficial owner Mote ) 215,249,438 43.05%
PF International Group Limited (“PF International”) Beneficial owner Mote2) 126,534,381 25.31%
PF Global Limited (“PF Global") Beneficial owner Nete3 47,326,181 9.47%

Notes:

(1) Ambon Holding Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Jiaan (£ %) who is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Ambon
Holding Limited under the SFO.

(2)  These Shares are held by PF International, which is owned as to approximately 26.51% by Mr. Zhou Yinbiao (JAIR1E), 18.55% by Mr.
Yu Yangui (TREEE), 16.76% by Mr. Dai Xianru (B E20), 13.7% by Mr. Wang Yun (£), 9.76% by Mr. Ben Daolin (E&#), 8.26%
by Mr. Chen Lidong (F#%252) and 6.46% by Mr. Ben Daochun (E3&E%).

(3)  These Shares are held by PF Global, which is owned as to approximately 19.2% by Ben Xudong (Z/B), 32.64% by Chen Yulou (Ff
E18), 21.6% by Cai Tongfu (2[FE), 1.92% by Liu Chengguan (2IXE), 1.92% by Qian Jiayin (£2058), 1.28% by Zhang Doufa (3&
[8%), 1.28% by Ding Jialin (T {£#), 0.64% by Wang Shigin (£t 7), 0.64% by Ding Qinghai (T &%), 0.64% by Cui Hengfu (E18
&), 0.64% by Jiao Yuanjin (fRiEiE), 0.64% by Wang Xiaobo (F/]NE), 0.64% by Yu Zhongwen (FH3X), 0.64% by Lin Xianyue (&
%2 F), 0.64% by Yuan Xiaofei (/]\), 1.12% by Zhou Bugao (El#1&), 1.12% by Shen Jixiang (JL & #£), 0.64% by Zhou Yue (E1}1),
0.64% by Zhou Kewen (JE321%), 0.64% by Zhou lJin (JE$%), 0.48% by Wang Huajun (E2£1£), 0.48% by Zhang Gui (3R &), 0.48% by
Liu Yaqin (2|25 /), 0.48% by Ben Zhonglin (B EK), 0.64% by Wang Jin (E£#), 0.64% by Jiang Xiaoming (##£R8), 0.64% by Wu
Yijun (23 F), 0.48% by Pei Haiging (25/8%), 0.48% by Cui Xinxin (BfXfiX) (which was inherited from Cui Yegui (% &) on 1 July
2018), 0.48% by Zhou Jianyi (JEli&%5) and 5.6% by Pei Qirong (Z2E £8).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors were not aware of any other person who had or deemed to have interests or
short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares which has disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) for the
benefit of the existing Directors is currently in force since the Listing Date. The Company has taken out directors’ liability insurance that
provides appropriate cover for the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022.

COMPETING INTEREST

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31 December 2022, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, information and
belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, none of the Directors or the Controlling Shareholders of the Company or their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is interested in any business which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group nor any conflicts of interest which has or may have with the Group of interests with the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank borrowings of approximately RMB105.4 million (31 December 2021: Nil).

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debenture during the year ended 31 December 2022.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'’S SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 was the Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the
SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. No equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient prescribed public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31

December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the "Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the investment committee (the
“Investment Committee") for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All the Board committees have been established with
defined written terms of reference, which are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at

http://pengfei.com.cn/.

All the Board committees should report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made. All Board committees members are
provided with sufficient resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in

appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expense.
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ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SHARE OFFER

In connection with the Listing, on 15 November 2019, 125,000,000 new Shares were issued at a price of HK$1.58 per Share and
323,614,100 new Shares were issued pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the Prospectus).

The net proceeds raised by the Company from the abovementioned Share Offer (as defined in the Prospectus), after deducting the
underwriting fees and commission and expenses of the Company, amounted to approximately HK$150.0 million. The details of use of
proceeds by the Group are set out in “Management Discussion and Analysis — Use of Proceeds from the Share Offer” of this annual report.

AUDITOR

Since the Listing, the Company has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accounts of Hong Kong, as the auditor of the
Company. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been prepared by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
Certified Public Accountants of Hong Kong, the auditor of the Company, who will retire at the conclusion of the AGM and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the AGM.

AGM

The AGM of the Company will be held on Tuesday, 20 June 2023. A notice of convening the AGM will be published and dispatched to the

Shareholders in the manner required by the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
To be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting

For the purpose of determination of eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM, the transfer books and register of members of the Company
will be closed from Thursday, 15 June 2023 to Tuesday, 20 June 2023 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares of
the Company will be effected. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM to be held on Tuesday, 20 June 2023, all transfer of
Shares documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong
Kong time) on Wednesday, 14 June 2023.

To qualify for the proposed Final Dividends

For the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’ entitlement to the Final Dividend, the transfer books and register of members of the Company
will be closed from Wednesday, 28 June 2023 to Friday, 30 June 2023 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares of the
Company will be effected. To be qualified for receiving the proposed Final Dividend, all transfer of Shares documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Tuesday, 27 June
2023.
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PROPOSED ADOPTION OF THE SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED MEMORANDUM AND
ARTICLES

The Board proposes to amend the existing memorandum and articles of association (the “Memorandum and Articles”) of the Company
by adopting the second amended and restated memorandum and articles of association (the “Second Amended and Restated
Memorandum and Articles”), in order to (a) bring the existing Memorandum and Articles to conform with the core shareholder protection
standards set out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules; and (b) incorporate certain general updating and housekeeping amendments (the

“Proposed Amendments”).

The Proposed Amendments and adoption of the Second Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles are subject to the approval of
the Shareholders by way of passing a special resolution to be proposed at the AGM. A circular of the AGM containing, among other things,
details of the Proposed Amendments and adoption of the Second Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles, together with a notice

of the AGM, will be despatched to the Shareholders in due course.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE HONG KONG LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.
All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this Directors’ report form part of this annual report.

By order of the Board
China PengFei Group Limited
Wang Jiaan
Chairman

Jiangsu, China
30 March 2023
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Jiaan

Mr. Wang Jiaan (£X %) (“Mr. Wang"), aged 65, is an executive Director and the chairman of the Board. Mr. Wang was appointed as
our Director on 31 July 2017 and re-designated as our executive Director on 13 March 2019. Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for overall
management, corporate policy making and strategic planning of our Group's business operations. Mr. Wang is the father-in-law of Mr. Shi
Pengyu (FEH5=F), a senior management of our Group.

Mr. Wang has more than 40 years of experience in special equipment manufacturing business. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang worked
in Haian County Building Equipment Manufacturing Plant* (8 & M R RSB as a mechanical workshop technician and workshop
manager from October 1977 to July 1984 and was promoted as the deputy plant manager and technical manager from July 1984 to May
1994. Since then, Mr. Wang joined Jiangsu Pengfei and served as the deputy general manager from May 1994 to October 2001 and was
promoted as the general manager from October 2001 to October 2003. Since October 2003, Mr. Wang has served as the chairman and

general manager of Jiangsu Pengfei.

Mr. Wang has completed the provincial level mechanical industry professional technical staff high-level transformation innovative upgrading
senior training course at the Jiangsu Provincial Department of Human Resources and Social Security* (T#& A &Rt S REER);
and Jiangsu Province Mechanical Industry Association* (T# & #EMITEWE) in August 2012. Mr. Wang has completed the Nantong
City modern entrepreneur senior training course at Shanghai Jiaotong University in the PRC in April 2012. Mr. Wang was awarded with a
certificate after completion of the 7th Jiangsu province technological entrepreneur (investment & financing strategy and capital operations)
training course at Renmin University of China in the PRC in March 2011. Mr. Wang has completed the senior business administration
executive training course at Tsinghua University in the PRC in July 2008. Mr. Wang was awarded with a certificate after completion of the

building materials mechanical professional certificate at Yancheng Industrial Institute (8% T 22 Z= £l £4%) in February 1996.

Mr. Wang is a researcher-level senior engineer, recognised by the Jiangsu Provincial Department of Human Resources and Social Security*
(TE#xA AN ERMAERER) in November 2012, and is a first level/senior technician, recognised by the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security, the PRC (FFZE A RFEFEIA 77 E R & RIEZL) in November 2012.

Mr. Wang participated in public services including, among others, acting as the Vice-chairman of the 5th Committee of the China Building
Materials Machinery Industry Association* (4F BI&M #4% T %1 E) from December 2008 to December 2013, the Vice-chairman of the 5th
Committee of the China Building Materials Federation ({ BIZ2&E# £E& &) from October 2016 to September 2021, the Chairman of Haian
County Building Materials Machinery Business Association* (8% S22 M MR &) from October 2016 to September 2021, a member of
the 16th Committee of the Chinese National People’s Congress of Haian County* (FFEI/EZ %% 7B ARREAE) from January 2017
to December 2021, the Chairman of the 4th Machinery Committee of Jiangsu Province Building Materials Industry Association* (JT#x&
17¥1%E) from March 2017 to February 2022 and a member of the 14th Committee of the Chinese National People’s Congress of Nantong
City* (FEIEEME+HEARREZAE) from January 2012 to December 2016. Since August 2017, Mr. Wang has also held the position
as the secretary of Jiangsu Pengfei branch of the Chinese Communist Party* (FE X EE T#HIEREBR M BR AR EZERD).

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Wang has received awards from various organisations as follows:

Name of organisations

Award

Year of award

China Building Materials Federation

(PEREITHBAR)

Jiangsu Provincial People’s Government (T#k& A RIET)

China Building Materials Machinery Industry Association*

(hEEM BT XN E)

Nantong City People’s Government (F3 38 A R )

Haian County Chinese Communist Party Committee
(FEEEZEESLHZEZEE); and Haian County People’s
Government (B A RET)

All China Federation of Trade Unions (|22 48 T &)

China Building Materials Machinery Industry Association*

(MM T X E)

Mr. Wang was a director and the legal representative of the following companies which were incorporated in the PRC and were dissolved by

National Building Materials Industry Reform and
Opening-up Thirty Years Representative* (2 BEIEM 1T
HERM=TEREAD)

Provincial Model Worker* (‘& 4 )12 &)

"Eleven-Five” Building Materials Machinery Enterprise

Leader* ("+—H"EBMHEMEEEEAY)

2013 Nantong Private Economy “Distinguished
Enterprise, Brand and Leader”* Leader of the Year

QOIBFHBERELE B LM BAFEAY)

2016 Five-Star Entrepreneur* (2016 E A ER P ER)

National Labor Medal* (2Bl L —4 818 5)

Outstanding Entrepreneur in Building Materials and
Machinery Industry for 40 Years since China’s Reform
and Opening-up* (B2 & F A0 F =M M T8
FEEXK)

way of deregistration, and the relevant details are as follows:

Company name

March 2009

April 2011

July 2011

March 2014

January 2017

April 2017

November 2018

Date of deregistration

Jiangsu Zhongpeng Energy Technology Development Co., Ltd.* (T & BEERE B AR A F]) 18 May 2016
Haian County Strength Machinery Co., Ltd.* (8% &% E H#W AR 2 7)) 20 May 2016
Haian Pengfei Machinery Equipment Research Institute Co., Ltd.* (G B TRIE 2L ST 55f B IR A 7)) 20 May 2016

As confirmed by Mr. Wang, the aforementioned companies were solvent at the time when they were deregistered and he is not aware of
any actual or potential claim that has been or will be made against him or these companies as a result of their respective deregistration. For
further information, please refer to the paragraph headed “Disposal of or deregistration of subsidiaries and associated companies by our

Group during the Track Record Period” in the section headed “History, development and Reorganisation” in the Prospectus.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Wang was interested in a total of 215,249,438 Shares, representing approximately 43.05% of the total

number of Shares in issue.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Zhou Yinbiao

Mr. Zhou Yinbiao (JEI$E1E) (“Mr. Zhou"), aged 63, is an executive Director and vice-chairman of the Board. Mr. Zhou was appointed as our
Director on 7 November 2018 and re-designated as our executive Director on 13 March 2019. Mr. Zhou is primarily responsible for overall

management, production operation, internal management of the Group.

Mr. Zhou has more than 40 years experience in special equipment manufacturing industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhou worked
in Haian County Building Equipment Manufacturing Plant* (8% &M R ERELER) as a workshop deputy manager from July 1978 to
March 1982 and subsequently the workshop manager from April 1982 to May 1994. Mr. Zhou then jointed our Group and served as the
deputy plant manger from May 1994 to October 2001 and was later promoted as the deputy general manager from October 2001 to July
2002. Since August 2002, Mr. Zhou served as a director and the deputy general manager of our Group.

Mr. Zhou was awarded with the qualifications of senior economist and Mechanical Engineer by Jiangsu Provincial Department of Human
Resources and Social Security* (T# & A &R ERFERE) in November 2017 and Nantong City Department of Human Resources
and Social Security* (FE#AT A ERMAERIER) in November 2016 respectively. Mr. Zhou has also completed the advanced master of
business administration training course at East China University of Science and Technology (2253 T K £) in March 2013, the international
project management course at Sing-China Management Centre, Republic of Singapore in December 2009 and the building materials
mechanical professional certificate training course organised by Yancheng Industrial Specialist School* (B T % Z#I£4%) and Jiangsu
Province Building Materials Industry Bureau* (CL&r& BEEM K T /3) in February 1996.

Mr. Zhou participated in the creation of “Rapidly Improve General Contracting Capacity Realize a New Leap in Internationalization Strategy”*
(PRI T A A8 ) B IR B L B #7580 )) and was awarded with The 16th Provincial First-Class Enterprise Management Modernization
Innovation Achievement* (BTN EE R —FLEERRRLBIFAR) as accredited by Jiangsu Province Enterprise Management
Modernization Innovation Achievements Review Committee* (T#k& (P ¥ EIRB AR AIFKREBEZ B L) in January 2010. In addition, Mr.
Zhou was regarded as “Eleven-Five” Building Materials Machinery Enterprise Leader* (“-+— "EM #i %48 A¥) by China Building
Materials Machinery Industry Association* (7 BIZH #4 T 2% E) in July 2011.

Mr. Zhou was also a member of The 19th Committee of Chinese National People’s Congress of Dagong Town* (FEI AR EE+LEARK
KKE).

Mr. Zhou was a director and the legal representative of the following companies which were incorporated in the PRC and were dissolved by

way of deregistration, and the relevant details are as follows:

Company name Date of deregistration

Jiangsu Pengfei Grinding Equipment Co., Ltd.* (T&RIETRMD EZEER A7)

("Jiangsu Pengfei Grinding Equipment”) 29 November 2013
Jiangsu Pengfei Logistics Co., Ltd.* CTERES %A R A7) 18 May 2016

As confirmed by Mr. Zhou, the aforementioned companies were solvent at the time when they were deregistered and he is not aware of
any actual or potential claim that has been or will be made against him or these companies as a result of their respective deregistration. For
further information, please refer to the paragraph headed “Disposal of or deregistration of subsidiaries and associated companies by our

Group during the Track Record Period” in the section headed “History, development and Reorganisation” in the Prospectus.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Dai Xianru

Mr. Dai Xianru (FE10) (“Mr. Dai”), aged 64, was appointed as our Director on 7 November 2018 and re-designated as our executive
Director on 13 March 2019. Mr. Dai is also the finance director of our Group. Mr. Dai is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall

management, financial operations and internal administration of the Group.

Mr. Dai has more than 30 years experience in finance and accounting. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Dai worked as the head of accounting
of the then Jiangsu Yinong Fertilizer Group Company Limited* (/T #z =K EEE BRAF]) (formerly known as Haian County Dagong
Phosphate Fertilizer Plant* (&% S K ABAETH)) from January 1985 to February 1997. He then worked in the then Haian City Dagong
Township Enterprises Service Centre* (8% M AR SERZERRIEF L)) (formerly known as Haian County Dagong Town Enterprises Service
Station* (BZE KRN AEPERIEU) as a township industrial enterprises statistician from March 1997 to August 2001. Mr. Dai joined our
Group and has served as the head of finance department since September 2001. Starting from August 2002, Mr. Dai has also served as a
director of Jiangsu Pengfei. From December 2009 to January 2018, Mr. Dai was appointed as the manager of the auditor committee of the

trade union of Jiangsu Pengfei.

Mr. Dai is a certified accountant in China as accredited by the PRC Ministry of Finance in October 1994. He also received the qualification as

a senior economist from Jiangsu Province Department of Human Resources in November 2006.

Mr. Dai was the supervisor of Jiangsu Pengfei Grinding Equipment, which was incorporated in the PRC and dissolved by way of deregistration
on 29 November 2013. As confirmed by Mr. Dai, Jiangsu Pengfei Grinding Equipment was solvent at the time when it was deregistered
and he is not aware of any actual or potential claim that has been or will be made against him or Jiangsu Pengfei Grinding Equipment as a
result of such deregistration. For further information, please refer to the paragraph headed”Disposal of or deregistration of subsidiaries and
associated companies by our Group during the Track Record Period” in the section headed “History, development and Reorganisation” in

the Prospectus.

Mr. Ben Daolin

Mr. Ben Daolin (E3&#K) (“Mr. Ben"), with former name Ben Daonian (E#&4F), aged 57, joined our Group in February 1994, was appointed
as our Director on 7 November 2018 and re-designated as our executive Director on 13 March 2019. Mr. Ben is responsible for overseeing

the human resources and administrative management of the Group.

Mr. Ben has more than 30 years of experience in special equipment manufacturing industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ben worked in
Haian County Building Equipment Manufacturing Plant* (8% EM s 2LE42H) as a technician and quality inspector from July 1984
to July 1988 and then was promoted as the quality office manager from July 1988 to May 1994. Thereafter, Mr. Ben joined our Group and
served as the office manger from May 1994 to March 2002 and has been promoted as the supervisor and secretary to the board since March
2002.

Mr. Ben has obtained a number of professional qualifications, including a first level/senior technician as accredited by The Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security, the PRC (FFZE A RALFIE A & RAAEEREES) in November 2012; a senior economist as accredited by
Jiangsu Provincial Department of Human Resources and Social Security* (T %% AE[EE) in December 2008, the deputy secretary of the
2nd Committee of Haian County Building Materials Machinery Business Association* (&% 2 M i 3 €) as appointed in June 2013, a
mechanical engineer as accredited by Nantong City Department of Human Resources and Social Security* (R ™ A B RITERER)
in August 2015; the secretary of Haian County Building Materials Machinery Business Association* (/&% B2 M #i 278€) as appointed in
October 2016; a council member of the 5th Committee of Jiangsu Province Building Materials Industry Association* (T#x& M 1TEHE) as
appointed in March 2018, and the vice president of the 8th Council of the Nantong International Economic and Technological Cooperation
Association* (Eg 3 T BIFRAS B £ iT& YER €) as appointed in march 2022.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Ben participating in editing several National Standards, including GB/T 329790-2016"Building Materials Mechanical Product Classification
and Model Compilation Method"* (M #ME m 9 $8 R AR AR5 7E)), GB/T 35150.1-2017 “Technical Requirements for Complete Dry
Process Cement Production Equipment — Part 1: Raw material preparation systems”* (G 2/K R EERERERITERE 180 A8
BUEZ ), JC/T 405-2006 Conditioning tower for cement industry ((7KJE T 2 %2 ) and JC/T 406-2006 “Packing technical Conditions
AR B ZE AL M1 1)).

for cement machinery”

Mr. Ben also received awards from various organisations, including the following:

Name of organisations

Award Year of award

China Building Materials Enterprise Management

(hRREMHEEERHE)

Association*

Jiangsu Province Enterprise Management Modernization
Innovation Achievements Review Committee* (JT#k& 1&

FERRRCAFUREETERES)

China Building Materials Machinery Industry Association*

(FEBEM R T2 E)

Jiangsu Province Enterprise Management Modernization
Innovation Achievements Review Committee* (JT&k & 1&

EEERRCAHKNREEREE)

Mr. Ben completed Building Materials Mechanical Professional Certificate from Yancheng Industrial Institute*

in February 1996.

* For identification purpose only

Mr. Ben participated in the creation of “Building a September 2022
performance management system with the objective

of enhancing the overall competitiveness of the

company”* (AIRFEELFEE TR T 14 B ISR £ BAR

BB ZFER) and was awarded with The 2021-2022

National Building Materials Enterprise Management

Modernization Innovation Achievements, Second Class*

(20212022 FE=FEV EEEERREKRE=S)

Mr. Ben participated in the creation of “Rapidly Improve January 2010
General Contracting Capacity Realize a New Leap in
Internationalization Strategy”* (IRiRIZFHBFBAE

T BB L BREFT S ) and was awarded with The

16th Provincial First-Class Enterprise Management

FTREER

Modernization Innovation Achievement* (

—ShEERRR(CAIFR)

“Eleven-Five" Building Materials Machinery Enterprise July 2011
Leader* ("+— R "EHMEMDOEBEAY)
Mr. Ben participated in the creation of “Private April 2017

Building Materials Enterprises Adopting “One Belt,

One Road” as the Orientation of International Strategic
Management”* (R &EMBENL " —HF—K " RER
HIBIRR (L B A& B 32) and was awarded with The 23rd
Jiangsu Province First-Class Enterprise Management
Modernization Innovation Achievement* (5 =+ =4

EEREERARCAIFRR —F)

(B3R T2 ERI242) in the PRC
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Mr. Ben was a director of the following companies which were incorporated in the PRC and were dissolved by way of deregistration, and the

relevant details are as follows:

Company name Date of deregistration
Jiangsu Zhongpeng Energy Technology Development Co., Ltd.* GTE R #EaERRMTFIZE AR 2 7)) 18 May 2016
Haian County Strength Machinery Co., Ltd.* (§Z&%E Hi AR A 7)) 20 May 2016

As confirmed by Mr. Ben, the aforementioned companies were solvent at the time when they were deregistered and he is not aware of
any actual or potential claim that has been or will be made against him or these companies as a result of their respective deregistration. For
further information, please refer to the paragraph headed “Disposal of or deregistration of subsidiaries and associated companies by our
Group during the Track Record Period” in the section headed “History, development and Reorganisation” in the Prospectus.

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Zhang Lanrong

Ms. Zhang Lanrong (3R/EI&) (“Ms. Zhang"), with former name Zhang Lanrong (5R#48), aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 25 October 2019. She is responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group's strategy,

performance and financial operation.

Ms. Zhang has more than 12 years of experience in building materials industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zhang has worked as the
chief editor of “Jiangsu Building Materials”* ((ST#kE&# ) magazine since January 2006. She was appointed as the secretary of the board of
directors of China Jiangsu International Economic and Technical Cooperation Group Ltd. (FF BT #RBIBR 4B T & {EEEE AR A F]) from
December 2015 to June 2017.

Ms. Zhang was previously elected as the secretary general of the 3rd committee, the vice-president of the 4th committee and the executive
vice-president of the 5th Committee of the Jiangsu Province Building Materials Industry Association* (JT#r& M 1TERHE) in June 2006,
April 2012 and March 2018, respectively. Ms. Zhang was regarded as National Building Materials Association Advanced Worker by China
Building Materials Industry Association* (R BIZEEM £ T =) in June 2007.

Ms. Zhang was accredited by Jiangsu Provincial Department of Human Resources and Social Security* (GLEE A 1 E BT EIRERE) as a
senior economist, senior international business executive and a senior political economist in November 2010, November 2011 and September

2013, respectively.

Ms. Zhang obtained a Bachelor's degree in Economics Management from Nanjing University of Science and Technology (F 532 T X&) in
the PRC in July 1995 and a certificate of the master’s degree training course in Economics Management from Nanjing Agricultural University
(M FUEZAZ) in the PRC in November 1998. She also completed a chief editor training course from Jiangsu Province Journal Association* (T
w4 EATI#E) in October 2011.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Ding Zaiguo

Mr. Ding Zaiguo ('] f5El) ("Mr. Ding”), aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 25 October
2019. He is responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group's strategy, performance, financial operation and legal related

matters.

Mr. Ding has more than 20 years of legal experience. He is currently a qualified lawyer in the PRC as accredited by the People’s Republic of
China Ministry of Justice Lawyer Qualification Review Committee* ({1 #E A RFLME 7ES R EBEFEEZ EF) in August 1996. He is also
accredited by Nantong City Professional Lawyers Review Committee* (FiB M ZRMEZXETZ) as a level four lawyer in July 1999 and obtained
professional lawyer license from Jiangsu Province Judicial Department* (L& 51)%82) in October 1997. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ding
worked as a lawyer and a deputy manager in Jiangsu Victory Law Firm* (T&r4E % R {E R E 75 AT) from March 1996 to May 2002. Since then,
Mr. Ding has worked as the deputy manager in Jiangsu Bright Eyes Law Firm* (formerly known as Nantong Nanhai Law Firm* (& /@260
EIEAN) CTERZRZRMZESFT) and subsequently promoted as the manager in July 2017.

Mr. Ding obtained a Bachelor of Laws from Southeast University (S8 FA22) in the PRC in March 2005 through long distance learning course.

Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas (%5 f#38)

Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas (Z&38) (“Mr. Mak"), aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
on 25 October 2019. He is responsible for providing independent judgement on the Group's strategy, performance, resources and financial

operations.

Mr. Mak has over 15 years experience in accounting and financial management. Mr. Mak is currently a member of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Mak worked in Ernst & Young for about 7 years. From October 1997 to May 2000, Mr. Mak worked as a
manager in the listing division of Stock Exchange. From June 2000 to June 2001, Mr. Mak worked as a senior manager in the corporate
finance department in Vickers Ballas. From June 2001 to January 2006, Mr. Mak worked as the chief financial officer of Bison Finance Group
Limited (formerly known as RoadShow Holdings Limited) (Hong Kong stock code: 888). From February 2006 to October 2007, Mr. Mak
worked as the chief financial officer of MMG Limited (formerly known as Minmetals Resources Limited) (Hong Kong stock code: 1208).
From October 2007 to April 2010, Mr. Mak worked as the chief financial officer of Redgate Media (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Redgate Media Group. From May 2010 to April 2014, Mr. Mak worked as the chief financial officer of South China Media
Group. Mr. Mak was the chief financial officer and the company secretary of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited (former
known as Heritage International Holdings Limited, (Hong Kong stock code: 412) from October 2014 to May 2015. Mr. Mak then worked
as the chief operations officer of HF Financial Group Limited from May 2015 to January 2017. Mr. Mak worked as an executive director of
Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 8147) from May 2015 to July 2017. Also, Mr. Mak worked as a non-
executive director of Cocoon Holdings Limited (formerly known as Huge China Holdings Limited) (Hong Kong stock code: 428) from July
2015 to November 2018. Mr. Mak has worked as chief financial officer of Fortunet E-Commerce Group Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
1039) from January 2017 to January 2021. Mr. Mak worked as chief financial officer of M800 Limited from April 2021 to January 2021.
Since then, Mr. Mak has worked as chief financial officer of Ke Chuan International Holdings Limited from February 2021 to January 2022.
Mr. Mak is currently the Principal of the CFO Centre (Hong Kong). Mr. Mak has also been an independent non-executive director of Tao
Heung Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 573) since June 2007 and was an independent non-executive director of China Greenfresh
Group Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 6183) from May 2015 to July 2018. He also was an independent non-executive director of Global
New Material International Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 6616) from December 2020 to September 2022 and has been a chief
financial officer since September 2022.

Mr. Mak obtained a bachelor degree of commerce from Queen’s University, Canada in May 1989.
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CHINA PENGFEI GROUP LIMITED
2022 Annual Report

35



36

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Senior Management
Mr. Shi Pengyu

Mr. Shi Pengyu (KEBEF) (“Mr. Shi”), aged 38, joined our Group on 3 March 2018, and has been the general manager assistant of Jiangsu
Pengfei since then. Mr. Shi is responsible for project management. Mr. Shi is the son-in-law of Mr. Wang.

Mr. Shi has more than 3 years of experience in materials procurement and production. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Shi worked as a
project manager in the production management department of Shanghai Zhenhua Heavy Industry Nantong Gearbox Plant* ( -/8#R=E=E T/
HWERAEMR) from June 2006 to July 2012. He subsequently joined the materials department of Nantong Acetate Fiber Co, Ltd.* (533 a4
#:B PR A7) and worked in the maintenance department and materials department from August 2010 to March 2018.

He obtained a bachelor degree in electrical engineering and automation from Nanjing Normal University (R S ET#X22) in the PRC in July
2008.

Company Secretary

Ms. Chau Hing Ling (BE#)

Ms. Chau Hing Ling (A #%) (“Ms. Chau”), aged 48, was appointed our company secretary on 7 November 2018.

Ms. Chau joined Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited since June 2013 and now serves as a director of corporate services, where she leads a

team of professional staff to provide a full range of corporate services and listed company secretary services. Prior to joining Vistra Corporate

Services (HK) Limited, she was an associate director of corporate services of an international corporate services provider.

Ms. Chau has over 22 years of experience in the corporate services industry. She is currently the company secretary or joint company

secretary of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Chau received a master of laws degree majoring in corporate and financial law from The University of Hong Kong in November 2007.
She has been a fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute since May 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022

(the “"Reporting Period”).

e CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions as set out in the corporate
governance code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. During the Reporting Period, the Board believes
that the Company has fully complied with the CG Code. The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate governance

practices to ensure compliance with all the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

e COMPANY'S CULTURE

The Board believes that corporate culture underpins the long-term business, economic success and sustainable growth of the Group. A
strong culture enables the Company to deliver long-term sustainable performance and fulfil its role as a responsible corporate citizen.

The Company is committed to developing a positive and progressive culture that is built on its purpose, vision and mission.

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to strengthen its cultural framework by focusing on the following:

o Vision: Building into an industry flagship, creating a world-famous brand

° Mission: Manufacturing with the spirit of craftsmanship, shaping the future with quality

o Values: Forging ahead in unity, seeking harmonious development, upholding integrity and innovation, pursuing win-win
cooperation

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture and expects and requires all employees to reinforce. All of our new employees are
required to attend orientation and training programs so that they may better understand our corporate culture, structure and policies,
learn relevant laws and regulations, and raise their quality awareness. In addition, from time to time, the Company will invite external

experts to provide training to our management personnel to improve their relevant knowledge and management skills.
The Board always ensures that the objectives, values and strategies set are consistent with the corporate culture, while all directors
take the lead to act and are committed to promoting the corporate culture. For details of the Company’s achievements during the

Reporting Period, please see the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

The Audit Committee considers that the corporate culture and the purpose, values and strategy of the Group are aligned.
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e THE BOARD
(1) Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the Group
to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established four
Board committees including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Investment
Committee. The Board has delegated to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference. All

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform their duties.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the

interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

(2) Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Directors and senior management of the Company for
their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

(3) Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises four executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang liaan (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Yinbiao

Mr. Dai Xianru

Mr. Ben Daolin

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Zhang Lanrong

Mr. Ding Zaiguo

Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas
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Mr. Wang Jiaan is the father-in-law of Mr. Shi Pengyu, a senior management of the Group.

Except as disclosed, there is no other relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s))

between the Board members.

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise and the
appointment of independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board. Among the three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the nomination committee (or the board) shall have a policy concerning diversity of board
members, and shall disclose the policy on diversity or a summary of the policy in the corporate governance report. The board diversity
policy adopted by the Board specifies that in designing the composition of the Board, Board diversity shall be considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to professional skills, regional and industry experience, knowledge, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity and length of service. The appointment of Directors will be based on meritocracy and potential
contribution to the Board, and candidates will be evaluated against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of
the Board.

Our Company has also taken, and will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including but
not limited to our Board and the senior management levels. Currently, one of our Directors is female. We recognize that the gender
diversity at our Board level can be improved given that the majority of our Directors are male. As of the date of this annual report,
the Company has not set a target figure and timetable for enhancing gender diversity at our Board level. We will continue to ensure
gender diversity in the recruitment of middle and senior staff so that our management includes a wide range of genders, thereby
allowing a diverse group of potential successors to succeed our Board in due course. As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 8 senior
executives, of whom 7 were male and 1 was female. As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 1,100 employees of which 740 (67.27 %)
were male and 360 (32.73%) were female. The Board believes that the Company has achieved gender diversity among its employees
and has not adopted any plan or measurable target for gender diversity as of the date of this annual report and is not aware of any
factors or circumstances that would make it more challenging or less relevant for the Group to achieve gender diversity among its

employees.
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The composition of the Board will be disclosed in the corporate governance report every year and the Nomination Committee will
supervise the implementation of the board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee will review the effectiveness of such policy on
an annual basis, and as appropriate, discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

As at the date of this annual report, the diversity of the Board is illustrated as below. Further details on the biographies and experience
of the Directors are set out on page 29 to page 35 of this annual report.

6 B
E>'<ecut|ve 60 or above
Director

4 -

2

Independent 41 - 60
1 Non-

e>§ecutlve Female
0 Director

Position Gender Age group

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure and composition of the Board, and is of the
opinion that the structure of the Board is reasonable, and the experiences and skills of the Directors in various aspects and fields can
enable the Company to maintain high standard of operation.
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Measurable Objectives

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diverse perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.
The Company is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are
appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered. The Nomination Committee will discuss periodically and
when necessary, agree on the measurable objectives for achieving diversity, including gender diversity, on the Board and recommend
them to the Board for adoption. In particular, the Nomination Committee will identify and make recommendations to the Board to
implement programmes that will assist in the development of a broader and more diverse pool of skilled and experienced employees

that, in time, will prepare them for Board positions.

Set out below are the measurable objectives adopted by the Board for achieving diversity:

° at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be independent non-executive Directors;

o at least two members of the Board shall have obtained accounting, legal or other professional qualifications;

° at least 70% of the members of the Board shall have more than twenty years of experience in the industry he/she is specialised
in;

o at least four members of the Board shall have work experience in equipment manufacturing or building materials industry; and

o the Board consists of a female director.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the measurable objectives of the Board diversity policy and
considers that the Board has maintained an appropriate balance in all aspects of member diversity, and satisfy with the current

situation and achieved the measurable objectives.

Confirmation of Independence by the Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each independent non-executive Director of his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be independent

in accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

Except that Mr. Wang Jiaan (an executive Director) is the father-in-law of Mr. Shi Pengyu, a senior management of the Group, none of
the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship), with any other

Director.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited
to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as their respective identity of the public companies or organisations and the
time involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose, and already disclosed their commitments to the Company in a timely

manner.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors should participate in continuous professional development to

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.1 of the CG Code, each newly appointed Director should be provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her

responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, all Directors, namely Mr. Wang Jiaan, Mr. Zhou Yinbiao, Mr. Dai Xianru, Mr. Ben Daolin, Ms. Zhang
Lanrong, Mr. Ding Zaiguo and Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas, have been updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance

practices. In addition, continuing briefing and professional development to Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

In compliance with the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code and to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices, the Directors received the following training during the Reporting Period:

Latest Listing Rules Updates and
Anti-Corruption System of
Listed Companies

Reviewed Attended
Materials  Seminars/Briefings

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Jiaan 4 v
Mr. Zhou Yinbiao v v
Mr. Dai Xianru v v
Mr. Ben Daolin v v
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Lanrong v v
Mr. Ding Zaiguo v v
Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas v v

The Directors are asked to submit a signed training record to the Company on an annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and performed
by different individuals. Mr. Wang Jiaan is the chairman of the Board. During the Reporting Period, the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Company are delegated to all of the executive Directors. Therefore, there is no issue of the role of
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Group being performed by the same individual and leading to power
being concentrated in any one individual. Each of the Board members has no financial, business, family or other material/relevant

relationships with each other.

The Board and the senior management, which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals, can ensure the balance of power
and authority. As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises four executive Directors and three independent non-executive

Directors.
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of Mr. Wang Jiaan, Mr. Zhou Yinbiao, Mr. Dai Xianru and Mr. Ben Daolin, being the executive Directors, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company. The initial term of their service agreements is three years commencing from the Listing Date
and renewable automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from the day next after the expiry of the then current
term, which may be terminated in accordance with the provisions of the service agreement or by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other. Save for the amount of Directors’ remuneration, particulars of the service agreements of

the executive Directors are in all material respects the same.

Each of Ms. Zhang Lanrong, Mr. Ding Zaiguo and Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas, being the independent non-executive Directors, has
renewed his/her letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of one year. The appointments are subject to the provisions
of retirement by rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any Director’s service agreement or letter of appointment with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any
new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself/herself for election by Shareholders at the first general meeting
of the Company after appointment and any new Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall submit

himself/herself for re-election by the Shareholders at the next following annual general meeting of the Company after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition, monitoring and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-election and succession planning of Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company.

Board Meetings and Committee Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Each of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Investment Committee shall meet at least once
every year and the Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Notices of not less than 14 days are given for all regular Board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting. For other
Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are dispatched to
the Directors or committee members at least three days before the intended date of the meeting to ensure that they have sufficient
time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meeting. When Directors or committee members are unable to attend
a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman
of the Board or the committee members prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the Company Secretary with copies

circulated to relevant Board or Board committee for comments and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and
the Board committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Board or committee members and dissenting
views expressed. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the relevant Board or committee members
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for

inspection by Directors.

During the Reporting Period, apart from the regular Board Meetings, the chairman of the Board also held a meeting on 30 March

2022 with all independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, six board meetings were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings is set out
in the table below:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Wang Jiaan (Chairman and Executive Director) 6/6
Mr. Zhou Yinbiao (Executive Director) 6/6
Mr. Dai Xianru (Executive Director) 2/6
Mr. Ben Daolin (Executive Director) 6/6
Ms. Zhang Lanrong (Independent Non-executive Director) 6/6
Mr. Ding Zaiguo (Independent Non-executive Director) 6/6
Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas (Independent Non-executive Director) 6/6

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and are
encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board to ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs. Approval

has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the management on the Company’s behalf.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the collective responsibility of Directors and has delegated the corporate
governance duties to the Audit Committee which include:

(@  to develop and review the Group's policies and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management of the
Group;

(©)  toreview and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of
the Company; and

(e)  to review the Group's compliance with the CG Code from time to time adopted by the Group and the disclosure in the
corporate governance report to be contained in the Company’s annual reports.

The Audit Committee has performed all the above corporate governance duties during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

We established a Nomination Committee on 25 October 2019 with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The written terms of reference of Nomination Committee are available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee currently comprises four members including Mr. Wang
Jiaan, an executive Director, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Zhang Lanrong, Mr. Ding Zaiguo and Mr.
Mak Hing Keung, Thomas. The majority of the Nomination Committee members are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Wang

Jiaan is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the followings:

o to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and

make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the

selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for

Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive;
o to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

o to develop a policy concerning diversity of Board members, and disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in the corporate

governance report.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to

the Board for decision.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the Nomination Committee was held and the attendance record of the Nomination

Committee members is set out in the table below:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Wang Jiaan (Chairman) 171
Ms. Zhang Lanrong 11
Mr. Ding Zaiguo 11
Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas 11

In the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed and discussed the policy, procedure and criteria for nomination of the Directors,
reviewed and discussed the Board diversity policy and discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the Board diversity
policy and the progress made towards meeting the measurable objective in the policy, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, considered the re-appointment of the retiring Directors, reviewed the time commitment required from the

Directors and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid.
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Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to determine the nomination of directors, the procedure, process and criteria
to be adopted for the purposes of selecting and recommending candidates for directorship, and shall make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular, the chairman
and the chief executive. When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such as the qualifications, skills, integrity, experience
and the amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/her duties and responsibilities will be taken into
consideration as a whole. In the case of independent non-executive directors, they must further satisfy the independence criteria set
out within Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Since the selection of candidates should ensure that diversity remains a central feature of the
Board, a range of diverse perspectives, including but not limited to professional skills, regional and industry experience, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity and length of service would be considered in accordance with the Board
diversity policy adopted by the Board.

The process to identify potential candidates for the Board would be as follows:

(1) identifying potential candidates, including recommendations from the Board members, professional search firms and the
Shareholders of the Company;

(2)  evaluating the candidates based on the approved selection criteria through methods such as reviewing the resume and
conducting the background checks;

(3)  reviewing the profiles of the shortlisted candidates and interview them; and

(4) making recommendations to the Board on the selected candidates.

The nomination policy also includes the Board succession plan to assess whether vacancies on the Board would be created or expected
due to the Directors’ resignation, retirement, death and other circumstances and to identify candidates in advance if necessary.
The Nomination Committee will review this policy from time to time, and monitor the implementation of this policy, to ensure its

effectiveness. During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the nomination policy.

Remuneration Committee

We established a Remuneration Committee on 25 October 2019 with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The written terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members including Mr.
Dai Xianru, an executive Director, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ding Zaiguo and Ms. Zhang Lanrong. The
majority of the Remuneration Committee members are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Ding Zaiguo is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model described in paragraph E.1.2(c) under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (i.e. make recommendation to our Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Group).

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the followings:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all directors and senior management

remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;
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. to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors;

° to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

o to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors and senior management for any loss or termination of

office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

o to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held and the attendance record of the Remuneration

Committee members is set out in the table below:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Ding Zaiguo (Chairman) 171
Mr. Dai Xianru 1
Ms. Zhang Lanrong 11

In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and senior management
of the Company, assessed performance of executive Directors, made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of

individual executive Directors and senior management and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid.

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the senior management of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out below:

Remuneration by band Number of individual

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 1

Audit Committee

We established an Audit Committee on 25 October 2019 with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
written terms of reference of Audit Committee are available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. As
at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee currently comprises three members and all are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas, Ms. Zhang Lanrong and Mr. Ding Zaiguo. Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the followings:

Relationship with the external auditor

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its

resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standard;

to discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;
to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity that a
reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm

nationally or internationally;

to report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any matters where action or improvement is needed;

Review of the Company’s financial information

to monitor the integrity of financial statements of the Company and the Company’s annual report and accounts and half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting judgements contained
therein. In reviewing these reports before submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(@)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(b)  major judgemental areas;

(c)  significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(d)  going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(e) compliance with accounting standards; and

(f) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to financial reporting;

in regard to the duties under paragraph above,

1. the members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the Board and senior management of the Company;
2. the Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the external auditor of the Company; and
3. the Audit Committee shall consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the

reports and accounts and it should give due consideration to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s staff

responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function, compliance officer or auditors;
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Oversight of the Company’s the financial reporting system and internal control procedures

to review the Company's financial controls, internal control and risk management systems;
to discuss the internal control system with management and to ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. The discussion should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,

training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial functions;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to review the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination between the internal and
external auditors, and ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any material queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management's response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in the CG Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules;

to consider other matters, as required by the Board, to be performed by the Audit Committee.

Others

to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with the external auditor;

where the Board disagrees with the Audit Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditors, the Company should include in the corporate governance report a statement from the Audit Committee
explaining its recommendation and also the reason(s) why the Board has taken different view;

to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practice on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to perform the Company’s corporate governance functions;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior management of the
Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of
the Company; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company.
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(5)

During the Reporting Period, two meetings of the Audit Committee was held and the attendance record of the Audit Committee

members is set out in the table below:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas (Chairman) 2/2
Ms. Zhang Lanrong 2/2
Mr. Ding Zaiguo 2/2

In the meeting, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s policies on corporate governance and discussed the same with the
Board, reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance procedures, internal control and risk management systems (including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions) and associated processes and the reappointment of the external auditor and fulfilled
duties as required aforesaid. The Board had not deviated from any recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the selection,

appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee also reviewed the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 as well as the audit report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting issues and major findings in course of audit,

and the interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2022.

There are proper arrangements for employees, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,

internal control and other matters.

Investment Committee

We established an Investment Committee on 25 October 2019 with its written terms of reference which are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. As at the date of this annual report, the Investment Committee currently comprises
four members and all are executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Jiaan, Mr. Zhou Yinbiao, Mr. Dai Xianru and Mr. Ben Daolin. Mr. Dai

Xianru is the chairman of the Investment Committee.

The principal duties of the Investment Committee include the followings:

o to control, review and approve any investment or subscription of financial products and other types of investments initiated by

our finance department and undertaken by the Group;

° to study and make recommendations to the Board on the major investment and financing solutions;
° to study and make recommendations to the Board on the major capital investment and assets management;
° to study and make recommendation to the Board on other significant investment matters which may have effect on the

development of the Company;

. to supervise the implementation of the above-mentioned matters duly approved by the Board; and

o other matters as delegated by the Board.

Their written terms of reference are available on the respective website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, three meetings of the Investment Committee was held and the attendance record of the Investment
Committee members is set out in the table below:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Dai Xianru (Chairman) 1/3
Mr. Wang Jiaan 3/3
Mr. Zhou Yinbiao 3/3
Mr. Ben Daolin 3/3

In the meeting, the Investment Committee discussed the investments which has been disclosed in the Prospectus by the Company and

the Group’s investment planning during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended

31 December 2022 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and its results and cash flows.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board
to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The Company
provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company's performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to ensure the Company establishes internal control system within the Group and
to assess its effectiveness. In accordance with applicable laws and regulations, we have established procedures for developing and
maintaining internal control systems. Such systems cover corporate governance, operations, management, connected transactions,
anti-bribery and anti-corruption, legal matters, finance and auditing, as appropriate for the needs of the Company. The Company has
established comprehensive risk management, primarily composed of departments specialized in auditing, finance, safety and quality,
investment and legal matters and other functional management departments, through which we monitor, evaluate and manage
risks related to work safety, financial matters, market development, capital management, human resources and other matters that
we are exposed to in our business activities. The Company plans to review and refine its risk management system regularly, based on
changes to its business. Our senior management oversees our risk management systems and reviews the results of our annual risk
assessment. Our risk assessment is conducted by a number of risk management departments within the Group. These departments
conduct annual risk evaluations and regular risk management and controls, and report to senior management about material findings,
in a timely manner. We also run training programs for our risk management personnel each year in order to enhance their overall risk

management ability and knowledge.
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The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and management of risks associated with its business activities. The Group's
internal control system is designed to manage and mitigate risks inherent in the Group's business to an acceptable level, but not
eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement,
loss or fraud.

The Board, on the basis of the target setting, identifies the risks in the process of internal control through daily and regular assessment
procedures and methods, classifies the risks and prepares the Company’s risk list. The Company understands its obligations under the
SFO and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should be announced immediately after such information
comes to our attention and/or it is the subject of a decision unless it falls within the SFO safe harbours. Meanwhile, the Company
has set up an inside information management system, the insider internal reporting obligations, reporting procedures and liability
of disclosure of information of the personnel concerned has been clearly stated, and the Company shall arrange self-examination
in a timely manner in accordance with the provisions of the relevant regulatory authorities. The real-time monitoring performed by
the Company may involve the inside information, and should organize intermediary agencies to determine whether the information
belongs to an inside information and practical, if it has fulfilled the disclosure requirements, will soon organize the disclosure and will
strictly control the scope of the monitoring before the disclosure, the volatility of share price will be monitored until the disclosure of
inside information is completed; if the disclosure requirements are not satisfied, the Company will also maintain strict confidentiality.
The main functions of the risk management and internal control systems are to safeguard assets, to ensure proper maintenance of

accounting records and provide reliable financial reporting, and to ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

The Company will review the internal control and risk management system once a year. During the Reporting Period, the Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the Group to ensure that a sound system
is maintained and operated by the management in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards, and confirmed its
effectiveness and appropriateness. The review covered all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. In particular, the Board considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. Based on information
furnished to it and on its own observations, the Board believes that the existing internal control system is adequate and effective, in
particular, from financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance perspectives.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Board adopted an anti-bribery and anti-corruption policy (the” Anti-corruption Policy”) on 25 October 2019. The Group is
committed to achieving the highest standards of integrity and ethical behavior in conducting business. The Anti-corruption Policy form
an integral part of the Group's corporate governance framework. The Anti-corruption Policy set out the measures implemented by the
Group, including the responsibilities, communications, assessment of anti-bribery and anti-corruption risk and establishment of control
system, reporting channel and department, investigation and reporting results to combat corruption. It demonstrates the Group’s
commitment to the practice of ethical business conduct and the compliance of the anti-corruption laws and regulations that apply to
its local and foreign operations. In line with this commitment and to ensure transparency in the Group’s practices, this Anti-corruption

Policy has been prepared as a guide to all Group employees and third parties dealing with the Group.

The Anti-corruption Policy is reviewed and updated periodically to align with the applicable laws and regulations as well as the industry

best practice.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Board adopted a whistleblowing policy (the” Whistleblowing Policy”) on 25 October 2019. The purpose of the Whistleblowing
Policy is to (i) provide a trusted avenue for employees, vendors, customers and other stakeholders to report serious wrongdoing or
concerns, particularly in relation to fraud, controls or ethics, without fear of reprisals when whistleblowing in good faith; and (ii) to
ensure that robust arrangements are in place to facilitate independent investigation of the reported concern and for the appropriate

follow up actions to be taken.
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The nature, status and the results of the complaints received under the Whistleblowing Policy are reported to the chairman of the
Audit Committee or the human resource manager of the Group. No incident of fraud or misconduct that have material effect on the
Group’s financial statements or overall operations for the year ended 31 December 2022 has been discovered. The Whistleblowing

Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit Committee to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has established an internal audit function and it is performed by the Internal Audit and Risk Department. It is responsible
for conducting independent reviews of the appropriateness and effectiveness of the Company's internal control and risk management
system. It also assesses the risks inherent in particular business or functional areas, including fraud or corruption, and conducts reviews
or audits to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance that adequate governance and controls are in place to address
such risks. The works of the internal audit function performed by Internal Audit and Risk Department will be reviewed by the Audit
Committee and the Board annually.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

Audit fees of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 paid/payable to the external auditors were approximately
RMB1,978,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no non-audit service had been provided to the Group by the external auditors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chau Hing Ling undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional

training to update her skills and knowledge during the Reporting Period.

Ms. Chau’s main contact in our Company is Mr. Ben Daolin, executive Director of the Company.

GENERAL MEETING

During the Reporting Period, one annual general meeting of the Company was held. The attendance record of the Directors is set out
in the table below:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Wang Jiaan (Chairman and Executive Director) 11
Mr. Zhou Yinbiao (Executive Director) 7
Mr. Dai Xianru (Executive Director) 17
Mr. Ben Daolin (Executive Director) 11
Ms. Zhang Lanrong (Independent Non-executive Director) 11
Mr. Ding Zaiguo (Independent Non-executive Director) 11
Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas (Independent Non-executive Director) 11
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Shareholders and potential investors on the Group’s business, performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to make
the informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides opportunity for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the annual general meeting of the Company to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The external auditors of the Company will also attend the annual general meeting of the Company to answer

questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing
a two-way relationship and communication between the Company and its Shareholders and maintains a website at
http://pengfei.com.cn/, where up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for public access. These include (i) the publication of interim and
annual reports and/ or dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements; (ii) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) updated and key
information of the Group available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website; (iv) the Company’s website offering
communication channel between the Company and its stakeholders; (v) the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong serving the
Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters; and (vi) convening investor meeting and/or analyst briefings, which led by
our executive Directors with existing and potential investors. Having considered the communications and shareholders engagement
in the general meeting held during the year, the Board is satisfied that the shareholders communication policy has been properly
implemented during 2022 and is effective. The Board will review the Shareholders’ communication policy regularly to ensure its
effectiveness.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution will be proposed by the chairman of that meeting for each
substantially separate issue at Shareholder meetings, including nomination and election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each Shareholder meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

(1) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting

In accordance with Article 64 of the Articles of Association, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed

to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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(2) Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. However, Shareholders who wish to propose resolutions may follow Article 64 of the Articles of
Association for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements

and procedures of Article 64 of the Articles of Association are set out above.
As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are available on the website of the Company.

(3) Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the Company as follows:

Address: Benjiaji, Northern Suburb, Haian City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
Attention: Mr. Ben Daolin

Tel: +86-513-88758898

Fax: +86-513-88755315

Enquiries will be dealt with in a timely and informative manner.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group is committed to sharing its development and achievements with Shareholders through proactive, stable and sustainable
dividend policy. The declaration, payment and amount of dividends in respect of any particular financial year will be subject to
the discretion of our Board, taking into consideration factors including results of operations, cash flows and financial position of
the Group, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the dividends paid by the Group, future prospects and other factors which the
Board consider relevant. The Group expects to pay a dividend of no less than 30% of the profit after tax upon Listing each year. The
proposed payment of dividends is also subject to the approval of our Shareholders. The Board will review the dividend policy on an

annual basis.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles of Association has been amended and restated with effect from the Listing Date, and are available on the respective

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

There is no other change in constitutional documents of the Company during the Reporting Period. The Board proposes to amend the
Company's existing memorandum and articles of association by adopting the second amended and restated memorandum and articles
of association at the forthcoming annual general meeting. For further details, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ report —
Proposed Adoption of the Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles”.
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Deloitte. = Eh

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA PENGFEI GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China PengFei Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 60 to 129, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and

consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"”) and have been

properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets

We identified the impairment losses on trade receivables and
contract assets as a key audit matter due to the significance of
trade receivables and contract assets to the consolidated financial
statements, and the use of judgement by the management in

evaluating the impairment of trade receivables and contract assets.

As disclosed in notes 3, 4 and 35, the Group measures impairment
loss allowance on trade receivables and contract assets based
on lifetime expected credit losses (the "ECL"). The ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets are assessed on an individual basis
for customers with (1) high credit risk or (2) significant balances
with different credit period and the remaining is collectively using a
provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience
based on the past default experience of the debtors, general
economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions. The estimated loss
rates are estimated based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's carrying amount of trade
receivables and contract assets amounted to RMB285,191,000
and RMB78,045,000, net of impairment loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets amounting to RMB53,825,000 and
RMB6,925,000 as respectively disclosed in notes 21 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements, represented 9.50% and 2.60% of

the total assets of the Group, respectively.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the impairment losses on trade

receivables and contract assets included:

o Understanding key controls relating to estimate the ECL of
trade receivables and contract assets;

. Assessing the management of the Group’s identification
and evaluation of individually assessed trade receivables
and contract assets, and the reasonableness of the Group
management’s grouping of remaining trade debtors and
contract assets into different categories in the provision

matrix;

° Testing the appropriateness of trade receivables’ ageing report
as at 31 December 2022, on a sampling basis, by comparing
individual items in the ageing report with the relevant
supporting documents, including the sale agreements and/or
other supporting documents;

o Assessing the reasonableness of the management'’s basis
in determining the credit rating for and the corresponding
loss rates applied to each debtor assessed individually. For
those with securities and guarantee obtained, assessing the
management'’s approach on the estimation of fair value of
these securities and guarantee in deriving the loss given
default amount; and

o Assessing the reasonableness of the management’s basis for
the remaining in determining the weighted average loss rates
applied in each category in the provision matrix.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the

annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the

directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors of the Company’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the

audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our

auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine

that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report is Tse Ming Fai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes

Revenue 5

Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Research expenditure

Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net of reversal
Finance costs

Profit before tax 9

Income tax expense 10

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share 13
— Basic (RMB cents)

— Diluted (RMB cents)
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Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
1,587,414 1,825,124
(1,298,876) (1,522,080)
288,538 303,044
9,715 10,488
16,972 (4,875)
(83,293) (87,590)
(47,919) (52,789)
(27,574) (30,519)
(11,690) (7,831)
(113) (4)
144,636 129,924
(22,576) (19,619)
122,060 110,305
122,220 109,233
(160) 1,072
122,060 110,305
24.44 21.85

N/A N/A




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax assets

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade, bills and other receivables
Contract assets

Contract costs

Value-added tax recoverable
Prepayments to suppliers
Financial assets at FVTPL
Restricted bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade, bills and other payables
Contract liabilities

Tax payable

Bank borrowings

Deferred income

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

Notes

21
23
14
15

16
19

20
21
17
18

23
24
24

25
26

27
29

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
136,500 248,231
100,000 -
403,950 293,837
9,597 10,658

192 9
45,854 46,789
20,612 18,917
780 24,506
717,485 642,947
1,002,803 827,851
479,350 440,535
78,045 112,464
15,948 14,653
10,576 9,485
139,478 92,385
100,000 200,731
114,090 48,967
345,681 393,732
2,285,971 2,140,803
758,232 778,482
1,257,782 1,221,261
40,989 45,911
87,579 -
2,544 -
2,147,126 2,045,654
138,845 95,149
856,330 738,096
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 28
Share premium

Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred income 29
Bank borrowings 27

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
4,504 4,504
110,617 143,617
688,740 566,520
803,861 714,641
895 1,055
804,756 715,696
33,768 22,400
17,806 -
51,574 22,400
856,330 738,096

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 129 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March

2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Wang Jiaan
DIRECTOR

CHINA PENGFEI GROUP LIMITED
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Mr. Dai Xianru

DIRECTOR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Attributable to owners of the Company

Capital Non-
Share Share surplus Other Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

(note a)

At 1 January 2021 4,504 183,617 128,977 2,252 326,058 645,408 (17) 645,391
Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 109,233 109,233 1,072 110,305
Transferred to capital surplus reserve - - 16,186 - (16,186) - - -
Dividend recognised as distribution (note 12) - (40,000) - - - (40,000) - (40,000)
At 31 December 2021 4,504 143,617 145,163 2,252 419,105 714,641 1,055 715,696
Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 122,220 122,220 (160) 122,060
Transferred to capital surplus reserve - - 18,232 - (18,232) - - -
Dividend recognised as distribution (note 12) - (33,000) - - - (33,000) - (33,000)
At 31 December 2022 4,504 110,617 163,395 2,252 523,093 803,861 895 804,756
Note:
a: In accordance with the articles of association of the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC"), the

subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10% of their profit after tax in accordance with the relevant accounting principles and
financial regulations applicable to enterprises established in the PRC before any distribution of dividends to owner each year to capital
surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered capital. The capital surplus reserve can be used to make
up for previous years’ losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of the subsidiaries. Jiangsu Pengfei
Group Limited* (JT#kM5 B IR B BR 2 ) (“Jiangsu Pengfei”) had made voluntary contribution to capital surplus reserve when the
reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.

* English name is for identification purpose only.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Interest income from an independent third party
Investment gain on financial assets at FVTPL
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of contract costs

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net of reversal

Net foreign exchange (gain) loss

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Increase in inventories

Decrease in trade, bills and other receivables
Decrease in contract assets

Increase in contract costs

(Increase) decrease in value-added tax recoverable
(Increase) decrease in prepayments to suppliers
(Decrease) increase in trade, bills and other payables
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities

Increase in deferred income

Cash generated from operations
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
144,636 129,924
113 4
(1,507) (3,336)
(31 @n
(5.737) (1,703)
4,365 4,632
1,061 1,062
7 3
170 167
7,509 8,580
(56) (327)
11,690 7,831
(4.591) 8,106
157,629 154,912
(154,435) (125,622)
57.330 24,101
39,518 6,043
(8,804) (8,131)
(1,091) 5,007
(47,093) 113,311
(20,316) 140,412
36,524 (113,981)
13,912 22,400
73,174 218,452
(29,193) (13,522)
43,981 204,930




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Placement of term deposits

Withdrawal of term deposits

Placement of restricted bank deposits

Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits

Purchase of and deposits paid for property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Bank interest received

Interest income from an independent third party
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL

Disposal of financial assets at FVTPL

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings raised
Interest paid

Repayments of lease liabilities
Dividend paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and

cash equivalents held in foreign currencies

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
178 306
(50,000) (150,000)
50,000 300,000
(131,357) (111,829)
66,234 79,983
(110,597) (120,799)
(222) -
1,507 3,336

31 31
(400,000) (250,000)
406,468 50,972
(167,758) (198,000)
105,385 -
(111) -
(19) (19)
(33,000) (40,000)
72,255 (40,019)
(51,522) (33,089)
393,732 434,795
3,471 (7,974)
345,681 393,732
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

China PengFei Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company and registered in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 31 July 2017. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 15 November 2019 (the “Listing”). The addresses of
the Company's registered office and the principal place of business are Suite #4-210, Governors Square, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue,
PO Box 32311, Grand Cayman KY1-1209, Cayman Islands and Benjiaji, Northern Suburb, Haian City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC,
respectively. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are production and
sale of complete sets of equipment (including rotary kilns system, grinding equipment system and their related parts and components),
construction of production line and provision of installation services.

The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company is Ambon Holding Limited (“Ambon"), an investment holding company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") with limited liability on 27 July 2017. Ambon was wholly-owned by Mr. Wang
Jiaan, the chairman and executive director of the Company (“Mr. Wang”, or the “Controlling Shareholder”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB™), which is also the same as the functional currency of the

Company.

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs")
Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the "IASB™) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on 1 January 2022 for the preparation

of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions and

performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("lFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 (including the June 2020 and Insurance Contracts’
December 2021 Amendments to IFRS 17)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Lease back®

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current®
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction’

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all these new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information is considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, these consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to

adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial instruments that

are measured at fair values, at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16 “Leases” and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 “Inventories”
or value in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the

date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributable to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with

the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present

ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct

goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control of the goods or services is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference to the progress

towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an

enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or services.
A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
("IFRS 9”). In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is

required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has

received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance obligations (i.e. certain sale of equipment contracts include the provision
of installation services), the Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone

selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service underlying each performance obligation is determined at contract
inception. It represents the price at which the Group would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer. If a
stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total estimated costs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange

for those goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by another
party. In this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service provided by another party before that good or
service is transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contract costs

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained. The Group's incremental costs of obtaining a contract are

mainly the commission fee paid to the Group’s employees.

The Group recognises such commission fee as an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is
subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the assets relate.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial application of IFRS 16, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception or modification date. Such contract will not be

reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
J any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received; and
o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability represent the fixed payments of the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments. The Group presented the

lease liabilities in “trade, bills and other payables” in note 25.

The Group as lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

All leases of the Group are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased

asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised

in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets

until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognizes as
expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they become receivable. Such grants are presented under “other income” in note 6.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to government managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or

permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any

amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in these consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investment in a subsidiary, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investment is only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or
the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
“Income Taxes"” requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal
portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

CHINA PENGFEI GROUP LIMITED
2022 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings are tangible assets that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than construction in progress/assets under installation as described
below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, including costs of testing whether the related assets is
functioning properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other than construction in progress/assets under installation
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit

or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

The Group's intangible assets represent software with estimated useful life of 5 years.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Research expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets and contract costs

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives and contract costs to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in

order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated individually,
or when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs. In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets
are allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets capitalised as contract costs under IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” (“IFRS 15"), the Group assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other assets related to the relevant
contracts in accordance with applicable standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised as contract costs is
recognised to the extent the carrying amounts exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that the Group expects to
receive in exchange for related goods or services less the costs which relate directly to providing those goods or services that
have not been recognised as expenses. The assets capitalised as contract costs are then included in the carrying amount of the
CGU to which they belong for the purpose of evaluating impairment of that CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets and contract costs (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the
recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated to the assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of
CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated statement of financial position include: cash, which comprises of cash
on hand and demand deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to regulatory restrictions that result in such balances
no longer meeting the definition of cash.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs, which comprises all costs of purchases and, where
applicable, cost of conversion and other costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Costs of raw materials are determined on a weighted average method and costs of work-in-progress and finished
goods are determined on a specific identification basis based on the actual costs specific to each processing order incurred. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty obligations under the relevant contracts with customers for sales
are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the Group's obligation.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair values through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset

or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated at FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade,
bills and other receivables, restricted bank deposits and bank balances) and contract assets which are subjected to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed on an
individual basis for customers with (1) high credit risk or (2) significant balances with different credit period and the remaining
is collectively using provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past default experience
of the debtor, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the impairment loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors
operate as well as various external sources of forecast on macro-economic condition, such as gross domestic product growth
rate.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument'’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the
credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant

decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not

necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk

before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical

experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:
o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

o information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the

following events:
(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(©)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having

granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or
(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a deregistration event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate determined at

initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade, bills and other receivables, contract assets (except for trade receivables and contract assets from
customers with (1) high credit risk or (2) significant balances with different credit period), restricted bank deposits and bank
balances are considered on a collective basis taking into consideration past due information and relevant credit information

such as forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors ; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by the management of the Group to ensure the constituents of each group continue to

share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is recognised

through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial

asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the

sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative
factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers the terms are substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received, and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of

the original financial asset, after reducing gross carrying amount that has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial assets will be calculated at the present value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial assets’
original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial
assets and are amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in

profit or loss at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities or equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with

the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the Group or a contract that will or
may be settled in the Group’s own equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Group is or may be obliged
to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity that will or may be settled
other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash (or another financial asset) for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity

instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities, including trade, bills and other payables, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that the management of the Group has
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in these consolidated financial statements.

Price allocation for multiple performance obligations

Certain of the Group's sale of equipment contracts includes the provision of installation services to customers. For contracts that
contain more than one performance obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on a

relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service underlying each performance obligation is determined at contract
inception. It represents the price at which the Group would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone
selling price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange

for transferring the promised goods or services to the customer.

The management of the Group exercises judgement in determining the price allocation basis between the performance obligations
of sale of equipment and installation service. In particulars, since the Group did not record any gross profit for the installation services
according to the Group’s pricing policy, the management of the Group would first estimate the stand-alone price of installation
service based on the fee charged by the subcontractors, while then allocate the remaining as the transaction price for the performance

obligation of sales of equipment.

Principal versus agent for revenue recognition on installation service

The Group is the contracting party to its customers in rendering the installation service and the Group is primarily responsible for
fulfilling the promise to provide the installation service and has the discretion on establishing the contract price. Thus, the management
of the Group considers the Group acts as principal and recognises revenue generated from the installation service on a gross basis.
Having considered the costs and benefits in performing the installation service, the Group had subcontracted the installation service
to independent third parties. Significant judgement is made by the management of the Group in determining whether the Group is

acting as a principal or agent in its performance of the installation service.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has recognised revenue amounting to RMB19,081,000 (2021: RMB19,919,000)

from the rendering of installation service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period that has a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next twelve

months.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets with (1) high credit risk or (2) significant balances with different credit period, are assessed for
ECL individually, and the remaining is estimated collectively by using a provision matrix. The provision rates are based on internal credit
ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on the past default experience of
the debtor, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed

and changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets are disclosed in note 35.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2022, deferred tax assets of RMB20,612,000 (2021: RMB18,917,000) in relation to deductible temporary
differences of accrued expenses and impairment loss allowance on trade and other receivables and contract assets have been
recognised by the Group as disclosed in note 19. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences of RMB11,031,000 (2021: RMB7,431,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future,
which is a key source of estimation uncertainty. In cases where the actual future taxable profits generated are less or more than
expected, a material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the

period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable from the sale of goods, construction of production line and rendering of
installation services, net of sales related taxes during the year.

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000

Sale of equipment, recognised at a point in time 1,424,583 1,484,664
Revenue from construction of production line, recognised over time 143,750 320,541
Installation service, recognised over time 19,081 19,919
1,587,414 1,825,124

Sale of equipment

The Group sells equipment directly to customers. The Group mainly sells equipment including related parts and components for
various industries including building materials production, metallurgy, chemical and environmental protection. The key equipment

manufactured by the Group consists of rotary kiln system and grinding equipment system.

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the goods are accepted by the customers after delivery to the customers’ premises,
since only by that time the Group passes control of the equipment to the customers. The Group does not grant any credit period to its

customers.

Customers are generally required to make an advance payment of 30% of the total contract sum before the Group commences
any work, and this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract. During the course of production of the equipment,
customers will generally be required to make progress payment. Once the production process is completed, customers will be required
to make delivery payment before delivery of the products. Generally, customers will be required to pay 90% to 95% of the total
contract sum before delivery. Contract liabilities are recognised when milestone payments are received for sale of equipment in which
revenue has yet been recognised.

The Group normally provides a warranty period of around 12 months from the date of acceptance by customers. For those contracts
with warranty period provided, the outstanding balances representing the retention money of approximately 5% to 10% of the total
contract sum initially recognised as contract assets upon delivery of goods and will be transferred to trade receivables and paid to the

Group in the absence of warranty claim after the warranty period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Construction of production line

The Group provides construction of production line services to customers of building materials industry, such as cement production line
projects, and other industries including metallurgy and environmental protection. Most customers of the construction of production

line business are located outside the PRC during the year.

Revenue from construction of production line is recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time. The Group’s performance
under the construction contracts creates production lines without an alternative use to the Group. As the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance performed to date, the Group recognises revenue over time for construction of production line
services. Revenue is recognised for these construction of production line services based on the stage of completion of the contract

using the input method.

Customers are generally required to make an advance payment of 30% of the total contract sum before the Group commences any
work, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract until the revenue recognised exceeds the amount of advance
payment received. During the course of construction of production line, customers will generally be required to make progress
payment and the Group will deliver the products required for the constitution of production line to the designated port or the
customer’s site by batches pursuant to the terms of the contract. In general, customers will be required to pay no less than 50% of the
total contract sum before the Group delivers all the products required. If customers are satisfied with the production line installed, they
will issue an acceptance certificate to the Group. The Group will receive no less than 90% of the total contract sum in aggregation
upon the acceptance certificate being issued. The Group normally provides a retention period of 12 months after the operation of
the production line or the issuance of the final acceptance certificate by the customers. For those contracts with retention period
provided, the outstanding balances representing the retention money of approximately 5% to 10% of the total contract sum initially
recognised as contract assets and will be transferred to trade receivables and paid to the Group in the absence of warranty claim after

the retention period.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the same contract, is recognised over the period in which the construction of
production line services are performed representing the Group's rights to consideration for the services performed because the rights
to billing are conditional upon specified payment milestones. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional. The Group typically transfers the contract assets to trade receivables when the Group achieved the specific

milestones of payments as stated in the corresponding contracts.

Installation services

Revenue relating to the installation services is recognised over time throughout the installation period because the Group's
performance enhances an asset that its customers control as the asset is enhanced. The provision of installation services is normally
included in the contracts for sale of equipment as aforementioned and is subject to the same retention terms under the contracts for

sale of equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations for contracts with customers
The Group applies the practical expedient of not disclosing the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that were

unsatisfied in respect of installation service as the Group’s contract has an original expected duration of less than one year.

The following table shows the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or
partially unsatisfied) in respect of construction of production line as at the end of each reporting period and the expected timing of

recognising revenue.

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000

Provision of construction of production line
Within 1 year 298,058 427,777

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) in
respect of the Group's sale of equipment was RMB2,960,538,000 (2021: RMB2,125,687,000) as at 31 December 2022. In normal
circumstances, the performance obligation is expected to be satisfied within one year. However, the timing of recognition is subject
to the request of delivery from the customers and may be uncertain due to political uncertainty of the countries at where the Group's
customers are situated, which may cause such revenue to be recognised more than one year after the end of the reporting period.

Information reported to the Chairman of the Group, being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of performance focuses on revenue from the sale of equipment, construction of production line and installation
services. No other discrete financial information is provided other than the Group's results and financial position as a whole. Thus, the
management of the Group considers that the Group has one operating and reportable segment. No operating segment information is
presented other than the entity-wide disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Entity-wide disclosures
Geographical information
The Group's non-current assets are all situated in the PRC. The geographical information of the Group’s revenue, determined based on

geographical location of the registered office of the immediate customers, during the year is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000

Mainland China 1,328,771 1,420,571
Outside Mainland China

Including: Uzbekistan 88,772 191,882

Kazakhstan 51,498 37,222

Brazil 35,120 -

South Korea 27,238 1,683

Tajikistan 675 57,103

Cote d'lvoire 426 52,872

Other countries 54,914 63,791

1,587,414 1,825,124

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
Customer A (Note) 191,882

Note: No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group carried

out transactions with this customer but the amount of the transaction was less than 10% of revenue for the respective year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER INCOME

Bank interest income

Interest income from an independent third party
Government grants (note)

Rental income

Others

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
1,507 3,336

31 31

6,759 5,621
1,410 1,331

8 169

9,715 10,488

Note: The amount represents unconditional government grants received from local government in connection with the enterprise

development support and innovation capability incentives and the amortisation of “deferred income" as disclosed in note 29.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Investment gain on financial assets at FVTPL

Net foreign exchange gain (loss)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Others

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense of lease liabilities
Interest on bank borrowings

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
5,737 1,703
10,953 (6,651)
56 327
226 (254)
16,972 (4,875)

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
2 4

111 -

113 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Capitalised in inventories

Total depreciation and amortisation charged to profit or loss

Analysed as:
Charged in administrative expenses
Charged in selling and distribution expenses
Charged in research expenditure

Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales
Directors' remuneration (note 11)
Other staff costs
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions

— Discretionary performance related bonus
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Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
24,085 27,356
1,061 1,062

39 18

935 984
26,120 29,420
(20,517) (23,556)
5,603 5,864
4,939 4,420
421 185

243 1,259
5,603 5,864
1,978 1,956
1,210,554 1,231,321
2,100 2,056
108,900 103,094
20,475 14,984
3,471 3,099
132,846 121,177




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Total staff costs 134,946 123,233
Capitalised in contract costs (8,804) (8,131)
Capitalised in inventories (79,175) (70,668)
Total staff costs charged to profit or loss 46,967 44,434
Analysed as:
Charged in administrative expenses 21,563 20,710
Charged in selling and distribution expenses 8,740 9,577
Charged in research expenditure 16,664 14,147
46,967 44,434
Research expenditure
Staff costs 16,664 14,147
Depreciation and amortisation 243 1,259
Technical consultancy fee 5,274 10,006
Materials consumed 3,784 4,182
Others 1,609 925
27,574 30,519
Gross rental income from investment properties 1,410 1,331
Less:
Direct operating expenses incurred for investment properties
that generate rental income during the year (1,061) (1,062)
349 269
Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal
Trade receivables 16,815 6,990
Other receivables (26) 47
Contract assets (5,099) 794
11,690 7,831
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
Deferred tax credit (note 19)

The Company is not subject to income tax or capital gain tax under the law of Cayman Islands.

Pengfei BVI is not subject to income tax or capital gain tax under the law of BVI.

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
24,271 21,059
(1,695) (1,440)
22,576 19,619

No provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax was made in these consolidated financial statements as the Group had no assessable profit

subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

Jiangsu Pengfei obtained the renewal of “High Technology Enterprise” certification in 2021, and was therefore entitled to a

preferential tax rate of 15% for a period of 3 years from 2021 to 2023.

The other PRC subsidiaries are subjected to PRC EIT rate of 25% during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at PRC EIT rate of 15% (2021: 15%) (note)

Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognised

Utilisation of deductible temporary differences previously not recognised

Tax effect attributable to the additional qualified tax deduction relating to
research and development costs

Effect of different tax rates of other subsidiaries

Income tax expense

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
144,636 129,924
21,695 19,489
700 410

577 60
- (54)
(850) (721)

454 435
22,576 19,619

Note: As majority of the profit before tax of the Group was contributed by Jiangsu Pengfei for both years, the PRC EIT rate of Jiangsu

Pengfei is used in the income tax reconciliation.
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11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(A) Directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to the individuals who were appointed as the directors and Chief Executive Officer of the

Company for the year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2022
Executive directors

Mr. Wang

Dai Xianru

Zhou Yinbiao

Ben Daolin

Independent non-executive directors
Zhang Lanrong

Ding Zaiguo

Mak Hing Keung, Thomas

Discretionary

Retirement performance
Salaries and  benefit scheme related
Fees other benefits contributions bonus Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(note)
- 385 - 139 524
- 263 - 55 318
- 347 - 129 476
- 304 30 143 477
72 - - - 72
72 - - - 72
161 - - - 161
305 1,299 30 466 2,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

11. DIRECTORS'’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(A) Directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021
Executive directors

Mr. Wang

Dai Xianru

Zhou Yinbiao

Ben Daolin

Independent non-executive directors
Zhang Lanrong

Ding Zaiguo

Mak Hing Keung, Thomas

Discretionary

Retirement performance
Salaries and  benefit scheme related
Fees  other benefits contributions bonus Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(note)
- 380 - 125 505
- 300 - 100 400
_ 340 - 100 440
- 273 27 120 420
72 - - - 72
72 - - - 72
147 - - - 147
291 1,293 27 445 2,056

Note: Discretionary performance related bonus is determined based on their duties and responsibilities of the relevant
individuals within the Group and the Group's performance.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

11. DIRECTORS'’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(B)

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group include 3 (2021: 4) directors of the Company for the current year. The
emoluments of the remaining 2 (2021: 1) for the current year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000

Salaries and other benefits 843 434
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 34 54
877 488

The emoluments of the five highest paid employees were within the following band:

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021

Nil to HK$1,000,000 5 5

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company or the five highest paid employees of the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

12.

13.

DIVIDEND
Year ended 31 December
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
Dividend for ordinary shareholders of the Company 33,000 40,000

During the current year, a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 of HKD0.08 (equivalent to RMB0.066) per
ordinary share (2021: HKD0.09479 (equivalent to RMB0.08)), in an aggregate amount of approximately HKD40,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB33,000,000) (2021: HKD47,370,000 (equivalent to RMB40,000,000)), has been declared and paid to shareholders of the
Company.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of HKD0.084 (equivalent
to RMB0.074) per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of HKD42.2 million (equivalent to RMB37.0 million) and the aggregate
amount of which will be paid out of the Company’s share premium account, has been proposed by the directors of the Company
and is subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and

compliance with the Companies Act of the Caymen Islands.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
Earnings:
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the purpose
of basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB'000) 122,220 109,233
Number of shares:
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share 500,000,000 500,000,000

No diluted earnings per share was presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Construction
in progress/
Plant and Office Motor assets under

Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles installation Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

COST

At 1 January 2021 255,234 293,888 7,755 15,226 9,656 581,759
Additions - 5,860 1,289 1,995 98,687 107,831

Transfers 7,550 26,609 - - (34,159) -
Disposals - (672) 11 (712) - (1,395)
At 31 December 2021 262,784 325,685 9,033 16,509 74,184 688,195

Additions 782 6,070 1,774 1,406 125,486 135,518

Transfers 131,293 53,580 - - (184,873) -
Disposals - (3,721) (14) (1,143) - (4,878)
At 31 December 2022 394,859 381,614 10,793 16,772 14,797 818,835

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2021 120,736 227,794 6,728 13,045 - 368,303
Provided for the year 10,861 14,020 1,139 1,336 - 27,356
Eliminated on disposals - (638) (11) (652) - (1,301)
At 31 December 2021 131,597 241,176 7,856 13,729 - 394,358
Provided for the year 11,246 10,523 990 1,326 - 24,085
Eliminated on disposals - (2,459) (13) (1,086) - (3,558)
At 31 December 2022 142,843 249,240 8,833 13,969 - 414,885

CARRYING VALUE

At 31 December 2021 131,187 84,509 1.177 2,780 74,184 293,837
At 31 December 2022 252,016 132,374 1,960 2,803 14,797 403,950
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress/assets under installation, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives after taking into account their estimated residual values:

Estimated

Useful lives residual values

Buildings 20 years 5%
Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years 5%
Office equipment 3 to 5 years 0~5%
Motor vehicles 4 years 5%

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Buildings
RMB’000
COST
At 1 January 2021, and 31 December 2021 and 2022 32,280
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2021 20,560
Provided for the year 1,062
At 31 December 2021 21,622
Provided for the year 1,061
At 31 December 2022 22,683
CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2021 10,658

At 31 December 2022 9,597

100 CHINA PENGFEI GROUP LIMITED
2022 Annual Report



15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2022 was RMB39,319,000 (2021: RMB39,257,000). The fair
value has been valued by the directors of the Company with reference to a valuation carried out by a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group, who have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar investment properties. The fair value is determined based on the income capitalisation approach by taking into account
the rental income of a property derived from its existing leases and/or achievable in the existing market with due allowance for
the reversionary income potential of the leases, which have been then capitalised to determine the fair value at an appropriate
capitalisation rate. The capitalisation rate is determined by reference to the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar commercial properties in which the investment properties are located (i.e. Haian City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC) and adjusted

to take into account the market expectation from property investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment properties.
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

Fair value

As at

31 December

Level 3 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

Commercial properties located in Haian City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC 39,319 39,319
Fair value

As at

31 December

Level 3 2021

RMB'000 RMB'000

Commercial properties located in Haian City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC 39,257 39,257

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful life after taking into

account their estimated residual value:

Estimated
Useful life residual value
Buildings 20 years 5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Leasehold lands

RMB’000
COST
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 and 2022 54,027
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2021 6,254
Provided for the year 984
At 31 December 2021 7,238
Provided for the year 935
At 31 December 2022 8,173
CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2021 46,789

At 31 December 2022 45,854

For both years, the Group leases lands from independent third parties for its operations. Lease contract is entered into for fixed term
of 10 years. In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group has made lump sum payments upfront to government for leasehold lands. The Group has obtained the
land use right certificates for all such leasehold lands except for leasehold lands with carrying amount of RMB10,334,000 (2021:
RMB10,334,000) in which the Group is in the process of obtaining.

Lease liabilities of RMB27,000 are recognised with related right-of-use assets of RMB27,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: lease
liabilities of RMB44,000 and related right-of-use assets of RMB42,000). The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, total cash outflow for leases amounted to RMB19,000 (2021: RMB19,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not enter into any leases that have not yet commenced.

CHINA PENGFEI GROUP LIMITED
2022 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

17. CONTRACT ASSETS

As at 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000

Construction of production line 2,345 20,862
Sale of equipment 73,977 92,691
Installation service 8,648 10,935
84,970 124,488
Less: Impairment loss allowance for contract assets (6,925) (12,024)
78,045 112,464

As at 1 January 2021, contract assets amounted to RMB119,301,000.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right to billing for work completed and not billed because the rights are conditional
upon specified payment milestones at the end of each reporting period. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional. The Group typically transfers the contract assets to trade receivables when the Group achieved the
specific milestones of payments as stated in the corresponding contracts.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets because the Group expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle.

Movement of impairment loss allowance on contract assets

RMB’000
At 1 January 2021 11,230
Impairment loss allowance recognised 6,038
Impairment loss allowance reversed (5,244)
At 31 December 2021 12,024
Impairment loss allowance recognised 3,272
Impairment loss allowance reversed (8,371)

At 31 December 2022 6,925
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

18. CONTRACT COSTS

19.

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
Commission fees 15,948 14,653

Incremental costs to obtain contracts included in contract costs relate to commission fees paid or payable to employees as part of their
salaries and other benefits as a result of obtaining contracts.

For contract costs in relation to the sale of equipment, they are charged to profit or loss when the equipment is accepted by the
customers and control passes to the customers. For contract costs in relation to provision of installation services/construction of
production line, they are amortised on the same basis of revenue recognised for installation services/construction of production
line as this reflects the period over which the goods or services are transferred to the customers. For the year ended 31 December
2022, amortisation amounting to RMB7,509,000 (2021: RMB8,580,000) was recognised as selling and distribution expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. There was no impairment loss in relation to the costs
capitalised.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
Deferred tax assets 20,612 18,917
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

19. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised and movements thereon during the year:

Impairment loss

allowance

Items impacted on trade

by the revenue and other

recognition Accrued  receivables and
(note) expenses contract assets Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At 1 January 2021 (35,211) 7,972 9,505 (17,734)
Credit to profit or loss - 529 911 1,440
Transferred to tax payable 35,211 - - 35,211
At 31 December 2021 - 8,501 10,416 18,917
Credit to profit or loss - 612 1,083 1,695
At 31 December 2022 - 9,113 11,499 20,612

Note: Balance as at 1 January 2021 represented the net deferred taxation impact arising from the effect of revenue recognition under
IFRS 15 for the purpose of preparing these consolidated financial statements as compared to the revenue recognition under
the relevant accounting principles and financial regulations applicable to the PRC enterprises for the purpose of preparing PRC
EIT filing. The respective items resulting in the net future taxable temporary differences include inventories, trade receivables,
contract assets, contract costs and contract liabilities. Such balance was transferred to tax payable as the PRC subsidiaries have
implemented the new accounting policy on revenue recognition under the generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC
since the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2021, which conforms with IFRS 15 in all material aspects.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2022, the Group had no unused tax losses available to offset against future profits.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had deductible temporary differences of RMB148,445,000 (2021: RMB133,545,000) available
to offset against future profits. Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of deductible temporary differences of
RMB137,414,000 as of 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB126,114,000). No deferred tax assets have been recognised in relation to the
remaining deductible temporary differences of RMB11,031,000 (2021: RMB7,431,000) as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. As at 31 December 2022, deferred tax liability has not been provided in these consolidated financial
statements in respect of all temporary differences attributable to undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries attributable to owners of
the Company amounting to RMB554,790,000 (2021: RMB451,847,000), as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

20. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

As at 31 December

No allowance for inventory provision was provided during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

21. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables

Less: Impairment loss allowance for trade receivables

Bills receivables

Total trade receivables and bills receivables

Other receivables and prepayments
Other receivables (note ii)
Prepaid expenses

Loan to an independent third party (note i)

Less: Impairment loss allowance for other receivables

Analysed as:
Current

Non-current (note i)
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2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
197,375 192,214
804,552 634,761
876 876
1,002,803 827,851
As at 31 December
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
339,016 411,336
(53,825) (39,058)
285,191 372,278
323,205 307,092
608,396 679,370
6,192 5,306
581 3,435
800 800
7,573 9,541
(119) (145)
7,454 9,396
615,850 688,766
479,350 440,535
136,500 248,231
615,850 688,766




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

21. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 1

RMB34,

Note i:

Note ii:

Note iii:

January 2021, the Group's trade receivables amounted to RMB356,418,000 (net of impairment loss allowance of
190,000) and bills receivables amounted to RMB354,126,000.

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group's trade receivables was a balance of RMB136,500,000 (net of impairment
loss allowance of RMB11,999,000) (2021: RMB248,231,000 (net of impairment loss allowance of RMB9,393,000)) due
from a customer in respect of the construction of a production line located in the Republic of Kazakhstan, among which
RMB31,166,000, RMB9,656,000 and RMB95,678,000 were aged 0 to 1 year, 1 to 2 years and over 2 years, respectively
(2021: RMB10,121,000, RMB47,469,000 and 190,641,000 aged 0 to 1 year, 1 to 2 years and over 2 years, respectively). In
May 2019, due to the expected delay in settlement from this customer as a result of the prolonged approval procedures from
the customer’s financing bank, the Group entered into a supplemental agreement with the customer, pursuant to which the
Group agreed to defer an estimated amount of RMB280,000,000 (the “Deferred Payment”) upon completion of the test
run of the production line on or before 31 December 2019. The amount of the Deferred Payment, time period for accrual
of interest and repayment schedule are subjected to finalisation between both parties according to the actual outstanding
principal and interest upon completion of the production line. Both parties agreed to enter into another finalised Deferred
Payment agreement with such details and terms to be fixed (the “Finalised Deferred Payment Agreement”).

The Group had taken into consideration, when entered into the supplemental agreement, among others: (i) the creditability
of the customer, (ii) the Group's business relationship with the customer, and (iii) the additional securities and guarantee
obtained by the Group, including (a) corporate guarantee from the controlling shareholder and a fellow subsidiary of the
customer, (b) charges over the equity interests of the immediate holding company and another fellow subsidiary of the
customer and (c) pledge of the cement plant under construction held by the customer which was located in the Republic of
Kazakhstan and all of its related machinery, tools, furniture, fixtures, equipment and vehicles. The Deferred Payment will be
carried at a fixed interest rate of 8.41% per annum and be settled in every three months by twelve instalments, which was
intended to start from 30 September 2020, but subject to a specific date upon finalisation of the Finalised Deferred Payment
Agreement.

During the current year, the Group entered into an offsetting agreement with the customer and a subcontractor engaged
by the Group for constructing the production line, pursuant to which RMB102,921,000 of the Group's receivables from the
customer and RMB102,921,000 of the Group's payables to the subcontractor had been offset as agreed by these contractual
parties.

The production line was completed in the current year. Up to the date of the issuance of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group and the customer were still in negotiation and had not yet entered into the Finalised Deferred Payment
Agreement.

As at 31 December 2022, other receivables mainly included staff advance of RMB1,980,000 (2021: RMB2,838,000) and
refundable tender deposits paid to potential customers of RMB3,020,000 (2021: RMB1,540,000). Staff advance was made
to staff solely for business development purpose, which will be charged to profit or loss upon completion of the business
development activities. The staff is required to pay back the excess, if any, to the Group immediately after such activities.
Refundable tender deposits will be refunded upon completion of the tendering procedure.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's loan to an independent third party was unsecured, repayable on demand and carry at
fixed interests of 4.40% (2021: 4.40%) per annum, and the management of the Group expects the settlement of such loan
would be made within twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

The Group does not grant any credit period to its customers except for the customer set out in abovementioned note (i). The trade

receivable balances at the end of each reporting period included the outstanding retention monies from its customers amounting to
RMB67,679,000 (2021: RMB41,103,000) as at 31 December 2022, of which the conditions to entitlement of consideration had been

reached and became unconditional.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

21.

TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of impairment loss allowance, presented based on the date when the Group
obtains the unconditional rights for payment at the end of each reporting period.

As at 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

O0to 1 year 122,134 95,432
1to 2 years 48,350 66,936
Over 2 years 114,707 209,910
285,191 372,278

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's trade receivables of RMB285,191,000 (2021: RMB372,278,000) which are past due is not
considered as in default because the management of the Group, according to the historical settlement pattern, industry practice
and the Group'’s historical actual loss experience, had assessed that the probability of settlement from their customers was high. The
management of the Group considered that the trade receivables became defaulted when these trade receivables had been past due
over 2 years with no settlement within 1 year.

The following is an aged analysis of bills receivables presented based on the issue dates of bills receivables.

As at 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

0 to 180 days 232,053 292,409
181 days to 1 year 91,152 14,683
323,205 307,092

The following is a maturity analysis of bills receivables presented based on the remaining dates to maturity of bills receivables at the
end of each reporting period.

As at 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000

0 to 180 days 319,948 303,137
181 days to 1 year 3,257 3,955
323,205 307,092

As at 31 December 2022, bills receivables of RMB28,971,000 (2021: nil) were pledged to banks for issuing bills payables.
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements of impairment loss allowance on trade and other receivables

Movement of impairment loss allowance at lifetime ECL on trade receivables for the year:

At 1 January 2021

Impairment loss allowance recognised
Impairment loss allowance reversed
Write-off as uncollectible

At 31 December 2021

Impairment loss allowance recognised
Impairment loss allowance reversed
Write-off as uncollectible

At 31 December 2022

Movement of impairment loss allowance on other receivables for the year:

At 1 January 2021
Impairment loss allowance recognised
Impairment loss allowance reversed

At 31 December 2021
Impairment loss allowance recognised
Impairment loss allowance reversed

At 31 December 2022

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Lifetime ECL
RMB’000

34,190
15,402
(8,412)
(2,122)

39,058
24,003
(7,188)
(2,048)

53,825

12m ECL
RMB’000

Included in the balance of impairment loss allowance are individually impaired trade receivables in full with an aggregate balance of
RMB27,233,000 (2021: RMB15,893,000) as at 31 December 2022, with reference to the historical experience of these receivables,
these receivables may not be recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group's trade and other receivables that are denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the Group are set out

below:

Analysis of trade and other receivables by currency:
Denominated in United States dollar (“USD")
Denominated in European dollar (“EUR")

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
14,197 6,420
75 73
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

22,

23.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has transferred bills receivables amounting to RMB372,006,048 (2021: RMB367,867,000)
to its suppliers to settle its payables of the same amount through endorsing the bills with full recourse basis. The Group has not
derecognised these bills receivables and the payables to suppliers in their entirety as in the opinion of the management of the Group,
the Group has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of these receivables and has not discharged its

obligation of the payables to its suppliers.

During the year, the Group issued certain bills payables to settle the Group’s trade payables to the suppliers, independent third parties,
and the Group's issued bills to suppliers may be eventually received by the Group. As at 31 December 2022, such bills kept by the
Group amounted to RMB98,560,000 (2021: RMB30,660,000). In this circumstance, in respect of such bills held by the Group which
were originally issued by the Group, the Group had no right to receive and no obligation to pay as such bills were not presented to the
bank. Accordingly, no such bill receivables and bill payables were recognised at the end of the reporting period.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
Structured deposits 200,000 200,731

As at 31 December 2022, the balance represents the Group's subscription of three structured deposits issued by commercial banks
in the PRC, including RMB100,000,000 with contractual term of six months shown under current assets, RMB49,990,000 with
contractual term of 372 days and RMB50,010,000 with contractual term of 373 days shown under non-current assets. In accordance
with the relevant terms of such deposits, the expected return will include the secured return calculated based on fixed rates plus
variable return linked with the fluctuation of exchange rates of EUR against USD. The gains from financial assets at FVTPL are
recognised as “investment gain on financial assets at FVTPL" included in “other gains and losses” in note 7.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

24. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

25.

The Group's restricted bank deposits were deposited to banks for the issue of bank borrowings, bills payables and letter of credit by

the Group and are therefore classified as current assets. The restricted bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of relevant

bank borrowings, bills payables and letter of credit.

Bank balances and restricted bank deposits carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.005% to 2.25% (2021: 0.005% to 2.25%)

per annum as at 31 December 2022.

The Group's bank balances and cash and restricted bank deposits that are denominated in currency other than the functional currency

of the relevant group entities are set out below:

Analysis of bank balances and cash and restricted bank deposits by currency:

Denominated in USD
Denominated in EUR
Denominated in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD")

Denominated in Swiss Franc (“CHF")

TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Bills payables

Other taxes payables

Amount due to an independent third party (note ;)
Accrued expense

Accrued payroll and welfare

Unpaid incremental commission

Lease liabilities (note i)

Other payables

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
28,131 223,834
8,011 60,627
16,217 4,018
87,479 -

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
681,146 700,879
3,551 4,659
9,186 9,404
983 899
2,657 3,019
21,327 20,745
39,238 36,221
27 44

117 2,612
758,232 778,482
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

25. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 0 to 365 days during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 and certain
suppliers allow longer credit period on a case-by-case basis.

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2022, the amount represented a loan of HKD 1,100,000 (equivalent to RMB983,000) raised from an
independent third party, which was unsecured, unguaranteed and carried interests at a fixed rate of 3.00% per annum (2021:
3.00%). Such loan was repayable on demand.

(i) The Group's lease liabilities at the end of each reporting period was arising from the lease of a piece of land for administrative
purpose which was located in Haian City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The lease term will be expired in October 2024, with a
fixed annual lease payment of RMB19,000. These lease liabilities were unsecured and unguaranteed.

Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not yet paid using its incremental borrowing

rate of 4.90% per annum. The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities, of which is
monitored within the Group's treasury function.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables, presented based on the invoice dates, at the end of each reporting period:

As at 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

0to 1 year 640,158 581,751
1 year to 2 years 17,110 97,582
Over 2 years 23,878 21,546
681,146 700,879

The following is an aged analysis of bills payables presented based on issue dates at the end of each reporting period:

As at 31 December

Age 2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
0 to 180 days 3,551 4,659

The following is an aged analysis of bills payable presented based on maturity date at the end of each reporting period:

As at 31 December

Age 2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
0 to 180 days 3,551 4,659
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

As at 1 January

2022 2021 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Amounts received in advance in respect of
— Sale of equipment (note ;) 1,163,014 1,015,117 1,029,297
— Construction of production line (note i;) 94,768 206,144 306,205
1,257,782 1,221,261 1,335,502

Contract liabilities that were expected to be settled within the Group’s normal operating cycle are classified as current liabilities.

Notes:

(i) For sale of equipment, revenue is recognised when control of the equipment has transferred to the customer, being at the point
the equipment is accepted by the customer.

(i)  These are balances due to customers under construction of production line contracts. These arise if a particular milestone
payment received exceeds the revenue recognised by the Group at the end of each reporting period.

Revenue recognised that was included in the balance of contract liabilities at the beginning of the year.

As at 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

Sale of equipment 456,943 599,434
Construction of production line 106,366 224,813
563,309 824,247

There were no revenue recognised in the current year that related to performance obligations that were satisfied in prior year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

27. BANK BORROWINGS

Secured bank loans
Unsecured bank loans

Carrying amount repayable as follows:

— within one year

— more than one year but not more than two years
—more than two years but not more than five years

Less: Amount due for settlement within one year and shown under current liabilities

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities

The exposure of the Group's borrowings are as follows:

Maturity
date
Fixed-rate borrowings:

17% secured bank loan of USD2,007,000 (note /) 16/03/2023
83% secured bank loan of USD10,028,000 (hote i) 08/05/2023
1% unsecured bank loan of RMB100,000 (note Jii) 13/03/2023

Variable-rate borrowings:
99% unsecured bank loan of RMB17,806,000 (note iv) 18/11/2026

As at 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000

87,479 -
17,906 -

105,385 -

87,579 -
1,750 -
16,056 -

87,579 -

17,806 -

Effective Carry amount

interest rate 31/12/2022 31/12/2021

RMB’000 RMB'000
1.68% 14,196 -
2.39% 73,283 -
3.85% 100 -
4.11% 17,806 -

Note i: Repayable in full on 16 March 2023. This bank borrowing is secured by CHF1,882,000 (equivalent to RMB14,196,000) of

restricted bank deposits.

Note ii: Repayable in full on 8 May 2023. This bank borrowing is secured by CHF9,715,000 (equivalent to RMB73,283,000) of

restricted bank deposits.

Note iii: Repayable in full on 13 March 2023.

Note iv: Repayable of RMB1,750,000 on 18 November 2024, RMB1,750,000 on 18 June 2025, RMB5,000,000 on 18 November 2025,

RMB5,000,000 on 18 June 2026, and RMB4,306,000 on 18 November 2026,
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28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out

below:
usbD
RMB'000
As at 31 December 2022 87,479

As at 31 December 2021 -

In respect of a bank borrowing with carrying amount of RMB17,806,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: nil) raised by Jiangsu Pengfei,
a subsidiary of the Group, Jiangsu Pengfei is required to comply with the following financial covenants throughout the continuance of
the relevant borrowing and/or as long as the borrowing is outstanding:

o the ratio of debts to total assets shall not be more than 0.55:1; and

o the total amount of external guarantees shall not exceed one time of its own net assets.

Jiangsu Pengfei has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period.

SHARE CAPITAL

Number
Par value of shares Amount
‘000 ‘000
Authorised:
On 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 and 2022 HK$0.01 10,000,000 HK$100,000
Issued:
On 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 and 2022 HK$0.01 500,000 HK$5,000

Presented in RMB'000 RMB4,504

DEFERRED INCOME

As at 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000

Government grants relating to construction of new plant and machinery 36,312 22,400
Less: Current portion (2,544) _
33,768 22,400

Government grants of RMB14,800,000 (2021: RMB22,400,000) have been received in the current year towards the cost of
construction of the Group's new plant and machinery. The amount has been treated as deferred income. The amount is transferred
to other income as set out in note 6 over the useful lives of the relevant assets. This policy has resulted in a credit to income in the
current year of RMB888,000 (2021: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

30. OPERATING LEASE
The Group as lessor

At the end of each reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments in respect of the Group's rental income to be received and the
expected timing of receipt are as follows:

As at 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

Within 1 year 574 594
1 to 2 years 421 422
2 to 3 years 382 399
3 to 4 years 378 382
410 5 years 378 378
Over 5 years 3,510 3,888
5,643 6,063

31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the following assets have been pledged to various banks for
obtaining line of credit, securing of the Group's banking facilities or the issue of bills payables at the end of each reporting period:

As at 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000

Restricted bank deposits 114,090 48,967
Bills receivables 28,971 -
143,061 48,967

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted
for but not provided in these consolidated financial statements 1,820 17,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Amount
due to an
independent Lease Dividends Bank
third party liabilities payable borrowings Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
At 1 January 2021 926 59 - - 985
Financing cash flows - (19) (40,000) - (40,019)
Non-cash changes
Dividend declared - - 40,000 - 40,000
Interest expenses - 4 - - 4
Net exchange gain (27) - - - (27)
At 31 December 2021 899 44 - - 943
Financing cash flows - (19) (33,000) 105,274 72,255
Non-cash changes
Dividend declared - - 33,000 - 33,000
Interest expenses - 2 - 111 113
Net exchange loss 84 - - - 84
At 31 December 2022 983 27 - 105,385 106,395
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

34.

35.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to owners of the Company through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure from time to time. As a part of this review, the management of the Group
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the management of the
Group, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, the issue of new shares, new debts or
the redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost 1,075,040 1,128,030
Financial assets at FVTPL 200,000 200,731
1,275,040 1,328,761
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 830,420 745,270
Lease liabilities 27 44

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade, bills and other receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, restricted bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade, bills and other payables and bank borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and lease liabilities and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Currency risk

During the year, approximately 16% (2021: 22%) of the Group's sales is denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities making the sale.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in currencies other than the respective
group entities’ functional currency at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
Assets

CHF 87,479 -
usD 42,328 230,254
HKD 16,217 4,018
EUR 8,086 60,700

Liabilities
usD 87,479 -
HKD 983 899

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy as the management of the Group considers that the foreign exchange
risk exposure of the Group is minimal. The Group will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% (2021: 10%) increase and decrease in the functional currency (i.e.,
RMB) of the relevant group entities against the foreign currencies. 10% (2021: 10%) is the sensitivity rate used in management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 10% (2021: 10%) change
in foreign currency rates. A positive (negative) number below indicates an increase (decrease) in post-tax profit for the year where RMB
weakening against the relevant foreign currencies. For a 10% strengthen of RMB, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit after tax.

Year ended At 31 December

2022 2021

RMB’'000 RMB'000

CHF 7,436 -
HKD 1,524 312
EUR 687 5,160
usb (3.845) 19,567

In the opinion of the management of the Group, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to loan to an independent third party, amount due to an independent
third party, lease liabilities and fixed-rate bank borrowings (details are set out in notes 21, 25 and 27, respectively). The Group
currently does not have formal interest rate hedging policies. The management of the Group monitors the Group’s exposures on an
on-going basis and will consider hedging interest rate risk should the need arises.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to floating-rate restricted bank deposits, bank balances and bank
borrowings (details are set out in notes 24 and 27).

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are detailed in the management section of this note.

In the opinion of the management of the Group, the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating-rate, restricted bank
deposits, bank balances and bank borrowings is insignificant and thus no sensitivity analysis is prepared.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a customer or counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group considers all elements of credit risk exposure such as counterparty default risk and sector risk for risk management
purposes.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at the end of each
reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade, bills and other receivables, contract assets, term deposits, restricted bank
deposits and bank balances.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual receivables at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of the Group considers that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The term deposits, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and bills receivables are determined to have low credit risk at the end of
each reporting period. The credit risk on term deposits, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and bills receivables is limited because
the counterparties are reputable banks and the risk of inability to pay or redeem at the due date is low.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 48% (2021: 67%) of the total trade receivables was due from a customer in respect the
construction of production line located in Kazakhstan as disclosed in note 21(i) as at 31 December 2022. Apart from this, the Group
does not have significant credit risk exposure to any other customer as concentration of credit risk to any other customer did not
exceed 5 per cent of total trade receivables as at 31 December 2022.

In addition to the credit risk limit management and other mitigation measures as described above, the Group monitors all financial
assets, that are subject to impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Group will measure the impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL rather than 12m ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the impairment loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the ECL on these items on an individual basis for customer with (1) high credit risk or (2)
significant balances with different credit period, as assessed based on the Group's historical credit loss experience of different customer
portfolio, and the remaining is estimated collectively by using a provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience
based on the past default experience of the debtor, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group writes off trade receivables and contract assets when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its operation management committee to develop and maintain the Group's
credit risk gradings to categorise exposures according to their degree of risk of default.

Other receivables

For other receivables, the Group has applied the general approach in IFRS 9 to measure the impairment loss allowance at 12m ECL,
since the directors of the Company assessed that there has not been any significant increase in credit risk.

In determining the ECL, the management of the Group has taken into account the historical credit loss experience based on the
past default experience of the counterparty, general economic conditions of the industry in which the counterparty operate and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The following table shows the Group's credit risk grading framework in respect of financial assets and contract assets:

Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
Performing For financial assets where there has low risk Trade receivables and
of default or has not been a significant contract assets
increase in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL - not
recognition and that are not credit-impaired credit-impaired

Other receivables 12m ECL
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor Amount is written off
is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial assets and contract assets which are subject to ECL assessment:

Internal credit 12m or Gross carrying
31 December 2022 Notes ratings lifetime ECL amount
RMB’000
Trade receivables (note) 21 Performing Lifetime ECL
(provision matrix) 162,310
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
(individually assessed) 148,499
Default Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
(individually assessed) 28,207
339,016
Contract assets (note) 17 Performing Lifetime ECL 84,970
(provision matrix)
Other receivables 21 Performing 12m ECL 6,992
Bills receivables 21 Performing 12m ECL 323,205
Restricted bank deposits 24 Performing 12m ECL 114,090
Bank balances 24 Performing 12m ECL 345,681
Internal credit 12m or Gross carrying
31 December 2021 Notes ratings lifetime ECL amount
RMB'000
Trade receivables (note) 21 Performing Lifetime ECL
(provision matrix) 137,819
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
(individually assessed) 257,624
Default Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
(individually assessed) 15,893
411,336
Contract assets (note) 17 Performing Lifetime ECL 124,488
(provision matrix)
Other receivables 21 Performing 12m ECL 6,106
Bills receivables 21 Performing 12m ECL 307,092
Restricted bank deposits 24 Performing 12m ECL 48,967
Bank balances 24 Performing 12m ECL 393,732

Note: For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the impairment
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. All of the Group's contract assets are not yet due for payment or in default. Except for debtors
with (1) high credit risk or (2) significant balances with different credit period, the Group determines the ECL on these items by
using a provision matrix grouped by internal credit rating.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit rating for its customers. The following tables
provide information about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed based on a provision matrix grouped
by internal credit rating considering geographical information of the customers and aging of the receivables as at 31 December 2021
and 2022, respectively, within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). Debtors with high credit risk (credit-impaired) or significant balances
with different credit period, with gross carrying amounts of RMB27,233,000 (2021: RMB15,893,000) and RMB148,499,000 (2021:
RMB257,624,000) as at 31 December 2022 were assessed individually, respectively.

Gross carrying amounts as at 31 December 2022
Weighted average

loss rate Trade receivables
RMB’000

Customers located in Mainland China with trade receivables aged
Within 1 year 6.3% 69,557
1 to 2 years 12.8% 41,710
Over 2 years 19.6% 23,668
134,935

Customers outside Mainland China with trade receivables aged

Within 1 year 0.1% 25,821
1 to 2 years 7.6% 2,528
Over 2 years 14.8% -
28,349
163,284
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Gross carrying amounts as at 31 December 2021
Weighted average

loss rate Trade receivables
RMB'000

Customers located in Mainland China with trade receivables aged
Within 1 year 6.6% 70,707
1to 2 years 11.1% 19,446
Over 2 years 24.2% 25,368
115,521

Customers outside Mainland China with trade receivables aged

Within 1 year 3.0% 19,886
1to 2 years 7.8% 2,373
Over 2 years 15.2% 39
22,298
137,819

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by the management

of the Group to ensure relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

During the current year, based on the provision matrix, net impairment loss allowance for trade receivables recognised amounted to
RMB821,000 (2021: RMB4,478,000), and the Group reversed net impairment loss allowance for contract assets of RMB5,099,000
(2021: recognition of RMB794,000). Provision of net impairment loss allowance of RMB15,994,000 (2021: RMB2,512,000) were
individually made on trade receivables from debtors during the current year with (1) high credit risk or (2) significant balances with

different credit period.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables and contract assets under the

simplified approach.

As at 1 January 2021

Impairment loss allowance provided
Impairment loss allowance reversed
Transfer to credit-impaired
Write-off as uncollectible

As at 31 December 2021
Impairment loss allowance provided
Impairment loss allowance reversed
Transfer to credit-impaired
Write-off as uncollectible

As at 31 December 2022

Liquidity risk

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
26,967 18,453 45,420
21,440 - 21,440
(8,038) (5,618) (13,656)
(5,180) 5,180 -
- (2,122) (2,122)
35,189 15,893 51,082
27,275 - 27,275
(12,135) (3,424) (15,559)
(16,812) 16,812 -
- (2,048) (2,048)
33,517 27,233 60,750

The management of the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to

finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed

repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

At 31 December 2022

Trade, bills and other payables at
amortised cost
Amount due to an independent
third party (included in
other payables)
Lease liabilities
(included in other payables)
Fixed-rate borrowings
Variable-rate borrowings

Weighted

average Total
effective On Within 6 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 6 months to1year  Over 1 year cash flows amount
% RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
- 724,052 - - - 724,052 724,052
3.00% 983 - - - 983 983
4.90% - 9 10 25 44 27
2.27% - 88,222 - - 88,222 87,579
4.11% - 272 272 19,120 19,664 17,806
725,035 88,503 282 19,145 832,965 830,447
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Weighted
Average Total
Effective On Within 6 months undiscounted Carrying
At 31 December 2021 Interest Rate demand 6 months to 1 year Over 1 year cash flows amount
% RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
Trade, bills and other payables at
amortised cost - 744,371 - - - 744,371 744,371
Amount due to an independent
third party (included in
other payables) 3.00% 899 - - - 899 899
Lease liabilities (included in
other payables) 4.90% - 9 10 40 59 44
745,270 9 10 40 745,329 745,314

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values. Such fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities of
the Group are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

CHINA PENGFEI GROUP LIMITED
2022 Annual Report



35.

36.

37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives

information about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs

used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on

the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair value as at 31 December

Fair value
2022 2021 hierarchy  Valuation technique and key input
RMB’000 RMB'000
Financial assets at FVTPL:
Structured deposits 200,000 200,731 Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flow are

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 during the both years.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

estimated based on expected return of the
structured deposits.

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group has no other major non-cash transactions during the both years.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Compensation of key management personnel

Salaries, bonus and other benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Discretionary performance related bonus

Year ended At 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
1,550 1,489

56 51

538 525
2,144 2,065

The remuneration of key management personnel (being Chairman and director of the Company and other key management of the

Group), is determined with reference to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
NON-CURRENT ASSET
Investment in a subsidiary 59,987 59,987
CURRENT ASSETS
Amounts due from subsidiaries 9,700 53,532
Bank balances and cash 14,991 2,971
24,691 56,503
CURRENT LIABILITY
Other payables 50 50
NET CURRENT ASSETS 24,641 56,453
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 84,628 116,440
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 4,504 4,504
Share premium 110,617 143,617
Reserves (30,493) (31,681)
TOTAL EQUITY 84,628 116,440
Movements of the Company’s reserves
Share Other  Accumulated

premium reserve losses Total

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At 1 January 2021 183,617 611 (31,791) 152,437
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year - - (501) (501)
Dividend recognised as distribution (note 12) (40,000) - - (40,000)
At 31 December 2021 143,617 611 (32,292) 111,936
Profit and comprehensive income for the year - - 1,188 1,188
Dividend recognised as distribution (note 12) (33,000) - - (33,000)
At 31 December 2022 110,617 611 (31,104) 80,124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

Principal place

of operation and
incorporation/
establishment, date

Shareholding/equity interest

attributable to

the Group as at 31 December

of incorporation/ Paid-in
Name of subsidiary establishment capital 2022 2021  Principal activities
Jiangsu Pengfei (note a) the PRC, RMB37,316,000 100.00% 100.00%  Production and sale
8 July 2002 of equipment,
construction of
production line and
installation services
Pengfei Equipment (note a) the PRC, RMB10,215,500 66.13% 66.13%  Production and sale
13 November 2001 of equipment
PengFei BVI the BV, usD1 100.00% 100.00%  Investment holding
2 August 2017 company
Heavy Equipment HK Hong Kong, 11 HKD1 100.00% 100.00%  Investment holding
August 2017 company
Heavy Equipment PRC (note b) the PRC, UsD9,560,000 100.00% 100.00%  Leasing of property
8 April 2004 and equipment
Nantong Golden (note a) the PRC, RMB300,000 100.00% 100.00%  Machine
24 July 2018 manufacturing

Notes:

(@) These companies are limited liability companies.

(b) The company is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the reporting period.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Revenue
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

attributable to owners of the Company

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net current assets
Total equity

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company
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For the year ended 31 December

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
1,587,414 1,825,124 1,574,429 1,465,464 1,016,201
122,060 110,305 132,014 79,905 73,316
122,220 109,233 131,937 78,935 72,506
As at 31 December
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
717,485 642,947 563,082 253,665 266,299
2,285,971 2,140,803 2,076,675 2,174,021 1,423,451
51,574 22,400 17,734 9,398 7,640
2,147,126 2,045,654 1,976,632 1,879,911 1,386,203
138,845 95,149 100,043 294,110 37,248
804,756 715,696 645,391 538,377 295,907
803,861 714,641 645,408 538,471 296,971
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